
 City Council  
Agenda 

City Hall 
225 Fifth Street 

Springfield, Oregon 97477 
541.726.3700 

Online at www.springfield-or.gov 

Mayor  
Christine Lundberg 
 
City Council 
Sean VanGordon, Ward 1 
Hillary Wylie, Ward 2 
Sheri Moore, Ward 3 
Dave Ralston, Ward 4 
Marilee Woodrow, Ward 5 
Bob Brew, Ward 6 

City Manager: 
Gino Grimaldi 
City Recorder: 
Amy Sowa 541.726.3700 

 

 
The meeting location is wheelchair-accessible.  For the hearing-impaired, an interpreter can be provided with 48 
hours notice prior to the meeting.  For meetings in the Council Meeting Room, a “Personal PA Receiver” for the 

hearing impaired is available.  To arrange for these services, call 541.726.3700.   
Meetings will end prior to 10:00 p.m. unless extended by a vote of the Council. 

 
All proceedings before the City Council are recorded. 

 
 

July 1, 2013 
_____________________________ 

 
6:00 p.m. Work Session 

Jesse Maine Room 
_____________________________ 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL - Mayor Lundberg ___, Councilors VanGordon___, Wylie___, Moore____, Ralston___,  
Woodrow ___, and Brew___. 

 
1. Spring Clean-up Discussion. 

[Brian Conlon]         (30 Minutes) 
 

2. Cooperative Agreement for Low Cost Spay and Neuter Services for Cat Owners. 
[Mike Harman]         (30 Minutes) 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

____________________________ 
 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
Council Meeting Room 

_____________________________ 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL - Mayor Lundberg ___, Councilors VanGordon___, Wylie___, Moore____, Ralston___,  
Woodrow ___, and Brew___. 



Council Agenda 
July 1, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT 
 
1. Trig Star Competition Recognition. 

[Jon Driscoll]         (05 Minutes) 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. Claims 
 
2. Minutes 
 

a. June 10, 2013 – Work Session 
b. June 17, 2013 – Work Session 
c. June 17, 2013 – Regular Meeting 

 
3. Resolutions 
 
4. Ordinances 
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 1 – AN ORDINANCE VACATING A 320-FOOT LONG BY 60-FOOT WIDE 
SEGMENT OF 31ST STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY, WHICH LIES SOUTH OF PIERCE PARKWAY AND 
NORTH OF MARCOLA ROAD (SECOND READING). 

 
5. Other Routine Matters 
 

a. Approval of Liquor License Endorsement for Walmart #4178, Located at 2730 Gateway Street, 
Springfield, Oregon.  

b. Approval of Liquor License Endorsement for LaVelle Vineyards, Located at 400 International Way, Suite 
130, Springfield, Oregon. 

c. Authorize City Manager to Sign a Contract Extension with Oregon Apparatus Repair, Inc. for Maintenance 
and Repair of Fire Apparatus. 

d. Authorize City Manager to Sign a Revenue Contract with Life Flight Network, LLC for FireMed 
Administrative Services. 

e. Approve a Motion to Waive the Requirement for Newspaper Advertisement of Requests for Proposal 
(RFP) Exceeding $100,000 and Allow the City Manager to Award and Sign the P41020 Channel 6 
Stormwater Master Plan Contract upon Completion of Contract Negotiations. 

f. Approve Cost of Living Increase of 2.2% for City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Effective May 6, 2013. 
 

MOTION: APPROVE/REJECT THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
  



Council Agenda 
July 1, 2013 
Page 3 
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS - Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request to speak cards are available at both 

entrances.  Please present cards to City Recorder.  Speakers may not yield their time 
to others. 

 
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE - Limited to 20 minutes.  Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request 

to Speak cards are available at both entrances.  Please present cards 
to City Recorder. Speakers may not yield their time to others. 

 
 
COUNCIL RESPONSE 
 
CORRESPONDENCE AND PETITIONS 
 
BIDS 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
1. Committee Appointments 
 
2. Business from Council 
 

a. Committee Reports 
 

b. Other Business 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 
 
1. Cooperative Agreement for Low Cost Spay and Neuter Services for Cat Owners. 

[Mike Harman]         (05 Minutes) 
 
MOTION:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A COOPERATIVE 
PARTNERSHIP WITH WAG TO PROVIDE TRANSPORTATION AND LOW COST SPAY/NEUTER 
SERVICES FOR CATS. 

 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 7/1/2013 
 Meeting Type: Work Session 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Brian Conlon, DPW  
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3617 
 Estimated Time: 30 minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Promote and Enhance 
our Hometown Feel 
while Focusing on 
Livability and 
Environmental Quality 

 
ITEM TITLE: SPRING CLEAN-UP DISCUSSION  
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Staff provides the Council with a few options to help inform a discussion about the 
prospect of a second city-wide clean-up or new customer service outreach; staff 
recommends that the Council discuss options and direct staff how to proceed.   

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

At the February City Council Goal Setting Session the Council requested staff to 
investigate the possibility of expanding the annual Citywide Spring Clean-up to 
include a second event that will continue to foster customer service and community 
pride.  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Council Briefing Memorandum 
2. Team Springfield Promise Neighborhood Project Ideas List 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The City’s annual Spring Clean-up continues to be a very popular program that 
provides City staff and volunteers a unique opportunity to connect with citizens on 
a more personal level. The Mayor and Council asked staff to explore adding a 
second annual clean-up or a new program initiative that will provide the same 
positive interaction with our customers and value to the community. 
Staff evaluated the following options: 
1. Hold the Clean-up twice a year by adding it in the late Fall or early Winter 
In assessing providing a twice annual clean-up, we unfortunately discovered that 
our invested partners Sanipac, Lane County Solid Waste, NextStep, St.Vincent de 
Paul, Schnitzer Steel, and Habitat for Humanity are not able to absorb the 
significant operating costs associated with a second event. Staff estimates a project 
budget of $40K-50K would be needed to essentially duplicate the current Clean-up.  
 
2. Engage the Team Springfield partners in collaborating on some project 

prospects in the Springfield “Promise Neighborhood” catchment 
A possible two-for-one approach is to attract youth volunteers by incorporating the 
Youth Day Of Caring annual event and the Promise Neighborhood project(s). Some 
initial project ideas include: a focused clean-up in the Springfield catchment area; 
general neighborhood beautification; improve pedestrian way finding; and safe 
route to schools enhancement. Initial project(s) estimate $10K-$20K. 
 
3. Coordinate a citywide volunteer effort to do graffiti abatement in  public right-

of-way and on private properties 
A citywide graffiti removal project would enhance city beautification and promote 
safer neighborhood environments. Initial project estimate $5K- $10K. 
 
4. Provide a pick-up service for the elderly and disabled citizens allowing them an 

outlet to dispose or recycle their large unwanted items. 
Elderly and disabled citizens often do not possess the ability to dispose of large 
unwanted belongings. This can be an issue of their inability to transport and or pay 
for the steeper cost of disposing of their larger items. Initial project estimate $5K- 
$15K. 



 

Attachment 1 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 

1 

M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: July 1, 2013 

COUNCIL 
BRIEFING 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Gino Grimaldi, City Manager 

From: Brian Conlon, Operations Division Manager 
Greg Ferschweiler, Operations Supervisor  
Len Goodwin, DPW Director  

Subject: Spring Clean-Up Discussion  

ISSUE: 
At the February City Council Goal Setting Session the Council requested staff to investigate the 
possibility of expanding the annual Citywide Spring Clean-up to include a second event that 
will continue to foster customer service and community pride. In more recent informal 
conversations with the Council, a consistent theme that came through is the over arching 
objective to do an additional event that achieves the same positive interaction with our 
customers. Staff now provides the Council with a few options to help inform a discussion about 
the prospect of a second citywide clean-up or new customer service outreach.  
 

COUNCIL GOALS/ 
MANDATE: 
Preserve Hometown Feel, Livability, and Environmental Quality 

BACKGROUND: 
The City’s annual Citywide Spring Clean-up continues to be a very popular program that 
provides City staff and volunteers a unique opportunity to connect with citizens on a more 
personal level. The Mayor and Council have long supported this 25-year program that provides 
Springfield residents a recycling alternative to disposing of their unwanted items such as 
appliances, computers, electronics, metals, scrap lumber, tires, yard debris, etc. The Council 
recognizes the many benefits of providing this useful service and desires to explore adding a 
second annual clean-up or a new program initiative that will provide value to the community.  

DISCUSSION: 
In developing some options we first evaluated holding the Clean-up twice a year potentially 
adding it in the late Fall or early Winter. Unfortunately, we discovered that our key partners in 
Sanipac and Lane County Solid Waste are not able to absorb the significant operating costs they 
incur. The same is true for partners such as NextStep, St.Vincent de Paul, Schnitzer Steel, and 
Habitat for Humanity that also incur labor and equipment rental costs. Consequently, although 
this option is feasible we estimate a project budget of $40K-50K to essentially duplicate the 
Spring Clean-up which is primarily funded by the Transient Room Tax. It is probable that we 
will need to seek other funding sources to support an additional cleanup.     
A second option that appears to hold good potential is to further engage the Team Springfield 
partners in the “Promise Neighborhood” initiative lead by United Way of Lane County. 
Individual projects or a combination of projects could be focused around the Springfield Twin 
Rivers Dos Rios and Brattain Elementary catchment area. Some initial Promise Neighborhood 



   

Attachment 1 
Page 2 of 3  

project ideas include: a second clean-up focused in the Springfield Promise Neighborhood 
catchment area; general neighborhood beautification; improve pedestrian way finding at 
crosswalks and street signs; and safe route to schools enhancement. Another possible two-for-
one approach is to attract youth volunteers by incorporating the Youth Day Of Caring annual 
event and the Promise Neighborhood project(s). These projects could potentially be one-day 
events done during normal weekday business hours which would help to minimize staff 
overtime costs for DPW Operations’ Division staff.   
Other projects to consider are city-wide graffiti removal in public right-of-way and/or private 
properties, and large item pick-up for the elderly and disabled.  

Potential Projects Evaluation  
As mentioned previously the Spring Clean-up is popular with our citizens and effective toward 
the objectives of improving customer service and reducing unsightly debris from private 
property and public right-of-way. Because several of our partners that are vital to the event have 
indicated that they can’t either financially or logistically contribute to a twice annual event, the 
City will likely need to cover the entire cost estimated at $40K-$50K – funding source not 
identified. Pros/Challenges:   

 Pros: Clean-up is well established and has a history of success; citizens are familiar with 
the event, therefore very little additional planning will be required; quick to organize 
and market; offers additional outlet for folks to dispose of unwanted items.   

 Challenges: Operating costs are potentially cost prohibitive; some partner agencies may 
not participate; may experience difficulty recruiting volunteers and staff.  

A focused project initiative in the Springfield Promised Neighborhood presents a broad 
spectrum of opportunities. The Team Springfield partners have recently discussed initial project 
ideas that could target the Springfield Promise Neighborhood (see attachment 2 – Team 
Springfield Promise Neighborhood Project Ideas summary). Individual projects or a 
combination of projects could be targeted in the Springfield Twin Rivers Dos Rios and Brattain 
Elementary catchment area. Project ideas include doing a general neighborhood beautification 
where the entire community comes together for a second clean-up; improve pedestrian way 
finding at crosswalks and street signs; safe route to schools enhancement; graffiti removal, etc.  
One prospect would be to integrate the annual Youth Day of Caring projects where Springfield 
School District, City staff, and volunteers get together once annually to perform a variety of 
community clean-up/beautification projects. Initial project(s) estimate $10K-$20K – funding 
source not identified (project costs could potentially be shared by Team Springfield partners).  
 Pros: Supporting the Promise Neighborhood initiatives aligns with Council Goals for 

improving customer service and diversity and inclusion goals; projects could be 
coordinated with various service groups and community volunteers; attractive in 
working with youth volunteers similar to Youth Day of Caring; could be targeted in the 
Springfield Twin Rivers Dos Rios and Brattain Elementary catchment area; projects 
could be accomplished during regular work hours minimizing staff overtime; may 
solidify Team Springfield partnering. 

 Challenges: Additional operating costs are currently not budgeted; coordinating projects 
and recruiting volunteers/service groups; risk management and legal waivers for work 
performed on public or private property may be needed; some citizens may view this 
initiative as not benefitting the broader community. 

 
 



   

Attachment 1 
Page 3 of 3  

 
Graffiti Vandalism Removal 
Graffiti, sometimes referred to as “tagging”, is a form of vandalism or defacement of public or 
private property. It is the most common type of property vandalism and virtually exists in all 
neighborhoods of the City. Graffiti is not simply a maintenance problem on public property but 
private property as well. A citywide graffiti removal project would enhance city beautification 
and promote safer neighborhood environments. Initial project estimate $5K- $10K – funding 
source not identified. 
 Pros: Engaging the community in a project of this type increases community awareness 

towards this problem and promotes City pride; deterrent for on-going graffiti/vandalism; 
improves the general appearance of public and private properties; could be 
accomplished during regular work hours; engages community participation; solidify 
Team Springfield partnering. 

 Challenges: Risk management and legal waivers for work performed on public or 
private property may be needed; general coordination of graffiti locations and work 
party mobilizations; additional operating costs are currently not budgeted; staff time to 
coordinate and market projects.   

 
Large item pick-up for the elderly and disabled 
Elderly and disabled citizens often do not possess the ability to dispose of large unwanted 
belongings. This can be an issue of their inability to transport and or pay for the steeper cost of 
disposing of their larger items. One element of the Spring Clean-up that is not advertised is 
pickup of large appliances for the elderly and/or disabled. City staff currently picks up 
appliances during Spring Clean-up when arranged by request. Initial project estimate $5K- 
$15K – funding source not identified. 
 Pros: Social value in providing service to the elderly and disabled population; could be 

accomplished during regular work hours; serves Springfield citywide; volunteers could 
assist staff; improves the general appearance of public and private properties; solidify 
Team Springfield partnering. 

 Challenges: Perception that project does not serve all populations; additional operating 
costs (such as tipping fees) are currently not budgeted or difficult to estimate; requires 
heavy lifting or equipment; risk management and legal waivers for work performed on 
public or private property may be needed; defining parameters and criteria for citizens 
receiving the service. 

 

RECOMMENDED 
ACTION: 

 Staff recommends that the Council discuss potential project options and 
direct staff how to proceed.    

 



 

Page 1 of 2 

TEAM	Springfield	&	Promise	Neighborhood	
Opportunities	(Generated	by	the	City	of	Springfield)	

TEAM Springfield Partnership Opportunities in the Promise Neighborhood… 

TEAM Springfield leaders and partners are sensitive to the need for engagement and partnership with residents in the Promise 
Neighborhood.  How TEAM Springfield and United Way engage with residents to partner on TEAM Springfield project ideas is 
vital.  Creating open dialogue and exchange of ideas will be a necessary first step in the vetting and possible implementation of 
many listed projects.  As part of the project identification, TEAM Springfield will provide an opportunity for the neighborhood to 
establish a vision, weigh in on initial project ideas while also proposing others and, ultimately, bring that vision to reality.     

City staff met with United Way of Lane County to discuss ways TEAM Springfield might get involved in the Springfield Promise 
Neighborhood.  The topics discussed and summarized below, as well as projects, are initial ideas to generate further conversation 
with TEAM Springfield partners and neighborhood residents.  These ideas align with issues and concerns raised by community 
members within the neighborhood.   

Policy Support and Research 

 Grant and funding relationship leverage.  Work to advocate and provide input and support on UW Promise Neighborhood 
grant submittals.   
Next Step for Implementation: This work is already occurring informally but might be integrated into organizational goal 
language for acknowledgement and monitoring.  United Way and TEAM Springfield staff should meet to discuss areas of 
funding need and grant partnering opportunities.  Each organization might assign a staff liaison as a point of contact for 
United Way grant author questions, feedback, or advocacy needs. This initial step may not require extensive community 
outreach.  TEAM Springfield staff should examine opportunities to seek grants for neighborhood projects.  The City might 
leverage its relationship with Smith, Dawson & Andrews to provide assistance in identifying and applying for grant funds.   

 Compile/code parcel or block level data. Utilize existing data (LLC, RLID) and include review of Leonard 2011 Systemic 
Neighborhood Observations case study. 
Next Step for Implementation:  Initiate a meeting between GIS specialists working within each TEAM Springfield organization 
and United Way to discuss data available and gaps in information.  This initial step may not require extensive community 
outreach. 

 Assess crime data specific to the area. Look for built environment improvements where needed, such as lighting   
Next Step for Implementation: Initiate a meeting with City (PD, DPW) and SUB staff to discuss best practices and outline a 
process for identifying areas for infrastructure improvements.   

 Mobility research. Work to understand why and where families move. 
Next Step for Implementation:  This work would likely include extensive outreach to families within the Promise 
Neighborhood.  First steps might include identification of desired outcomes and planning for outreach functions/activities. 

Beautification and Program Opportunities 
Next Step for Implementation:  The project opportunities listed below would all benefit from extensive community conversations 
to understand the desire or importance residents might place on the activities.  Providing residents with ideas, and an 
opportunity to suggest others, would be a positive first step in generating partnership and communication with residents around 
potential TEAM Springfield projects.  A necessary first step might be the planning of initial community meetings and outreach to 
establish a sense of priority and need around the listed projects.   
 Neighborhood Association development or Neighborhood Watch Partnership.  
 Civic programming to connect promise neighborhood residents to city hall and other TEAM Springfield partners.  
 SafetyTown in the neighborhood (possibly in Spanish). 
 Second cleanup focused on the neighborhood where the entire community comes together to volunteer.   
 General neighborhood beautification including landscaping utilizing volunteers.  
 Safe Routes to Schools enhancements like improved crosswalks and signage. 
 Wayfinding ped/bike signage installations including bi lingual signage. 
 Graffiti Abatement with the opportunity for the neighborhood to be a pilot area for a graffiti ordinance. 
 Public Art and Murals with TEAM Springfield partners as well as area art organizations like the Springfield Arts Commission 

and A3 students.  

Attachment 2 



 

Page 2 of 2 

TEAM	Springfield	&	Promise	Neighborhood	
Background	&	United	Way	of	Lane	County	Efforts	

What is a Promise Neighborhood… 
There is a national “Promise Neighborhoods” movement to develop a continuum of “cradle through college and career” solutions 
to improve educational and developmental outcomes of children 
living in the nation’s most distressed neighborhoods.  Based on 
Geoffrey Canada’s ground‐breaking Harlem Children’s Zone 
(www.hcz.org), Promise Neighborhoods may, in fact, be the key to 
improving outcomes for children in school and life.  United Way of 
Lane County has identified one of these Promise Neighborhoods as 
the Brattain Neighborhood in Springfield.  In this neighborhood, 
approximately 82% of children entering kindergarten do not meet the 
early literacy benchmark, as compared to 56% across Lane County.  As 
part of United Way of Lane County’s ten year goal to improve school 
readiness across the community, this neighborhood is one of two 
selected to pilot innovative programs, support existing effective 
services and align efforts across systems.  If United Way and area 
partners can have an impact in these neighborhoods, they hope to 
see movement in the county school readiness statistics while also 
identifying effective programs and efforts to scale to other 
neighborhoods and across Lane County.  Successfully achieving this 
mission requires the support of a broad range of community partners: 
education, business, social service, health, government, faith and 
many more.   

Programs and Community Outreach in the Springfield Promise 

Neighborhood… 
Each spring, volunteers from around the community go door‐to‐door 
in the Promise Neighborhood to let neighbors know about enrollment into the Kids in Transition to School (KITS) program as  
well as other summer activities, services and programs for families.  Schools are an important Promise Neighborhoods partner; 
they provide early literacy and social/emotional data on a regular basis, methods for communicating with parents and families, 
and partner on specific projects and grant endeavors. In addition, United Way of Lane County administers Parent Surveys to 
assess norms, attitudes, and needs within the Promise Neighborhoods and across Lane County.  Currently United Way makes 
strategic program investments in the Promise Neighborhoods and manages volunteer projects that align with its school readiness 
goals. Strategic investments include the Community Child Care Networks (Family Connections of Lane and Douglas Counties), 
parenting education and support (Parenting Now!), Cheery Chickadees preschool program (Willamalane and Early Childhood 
CARES), and Pilas! Family Literacy Program (Downtown Languages). The Summer Reading Spots at Willamalane Park Swim 
Center, Meadow Park and Guy Lee Elementary offer volunteer opportunities to support literacy. 
 
In 2012, United Way of Lane County was one of eleven local United Ways in the nation to be selected as a “Mobilization” site, 
receiving technical assistance from United Way Worldwide and their team of consultants in the area of community engagement 
and mobilization.  As part of this work, United Way of Lane County has conducted dozens of Community Conversations in the 
Promise Neighborhoods and across the entire county to assess what community members hope for their neighborhoods, what 
their priorities are, and where United Way and partners may be able to provide support for pursuing community goals.    

Figure 1. Springfield Promise Neighborhood Boundary

Attachment 2 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 7/1/2013 
 Meeting Type: Work Session/Reg. Mtg 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Michael Harman/Police 
 Staff Phone No: 726-3729 
 Estimated Time: 30 Minutes/05 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Preserve Hometown 
Feel, Livability, and 
Environmental Quality 

 
ITEM TITLE: COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR LOW COST SPAY AND NEUTER 

SERVICES FOR CAT OWNERS 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Work Session:  Discuss the next steps available to manage roaming cat populations in 
Springfield and provide direction. 
 
Regular Meeting:  Authorize the City Manager to enter into a cooperative agreement with 
WAG to provide transportation and low cost spay/neuter services for cats. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The City is considering entering a cooperative agreement with Willamette Animal 
Guild (WAG) to provide transportation and low cost spay/neuter services for cats 
for Springfield residents.  Other options could include modifying existing 
ordinances to regulate cats roaming at large. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment 1:  MOU and Process Outline 
Attachment 2:  Memo in Support of WAG Partnership 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

 
City leaders and Police Department Animal Control staff are frequently asked to 
address the issue of free roaming cats in the community.  The resources necessary 
to hire staff to address roaming cats or to contract for shelter and adoption services 
have historically been cost prohibitive.   
 
One option would be to modify the existing City Ordinance which prohibits dogs at 
large to include all animals, including cats.  Such a modification would subject cat 
owners who allow their pets to roam freely to fines.  Because of the difficulty 
involved in enforcing such an ordinance, especially the challenge of identifying a 
cat’s owner, this is not a recommended option. 
 
Another option is to manage cat populations by encouraging responsible cat 
ownership practices to include spaying and neutering owned cats.  Doing so should 
reduce the population of unwanted free roaming cats.  This is the recommended 
option. 
 
City Staff have been working with Willamette Animal Guild, or WAG, to develop a 
cooperative program that will provide low cost spay and neuter services for cats to 
Springfield residents, as well as transportation to and from the WAG facility.  
Funding would come from fundraising efforts in the community.  
 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a 
cooperative agreement with WAG to provide low cost spay and neuter services to 
Springfield cat owners. 
 

 



Attachment 1, Page 1 of 3



Attachment 1, Page 2 of 3



Attachment 1, Page 3 of 3



 

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: 7/1/2013  

To: Gino Grimaldi COUNCIL 

From: Michael Harman, Police Services Bureau Manager BRIEFING 

Subject: Cat Population Management Options MEMORANDUM 

ISSUE: Should the City support a cooperative program with Willamette Animal Guild to 
provide transportation and low cost spay and neuter services for cats owned by Springfield 
residents? 

COUNCIL GOALS/ 
MANDATE: 
Preserve Hometown Feel, Livability, and Environmental Quality 
 

BACKGROUND: 
City leaders and Police Department Animal Control staff are frequently asked to address the 
issue of free roaming cats in the community.  The resources necessary to hire staff to address 
roaming cats or to contract for shelter and adoption services have historically been cost 
prohibitive.   
 
 
One option would be to amend the current ordinance to extend the prohibition of animals at 
large to include cats, with violations resulting in a fine not to exceed $720.00 pursuant to 
5.418(3).  Current Municipal Code prohibits any keeper of a dog or of any farm animal to allow 
those animals to run at large, except for bees and cats (Municipal Code 5.418).   The current staff 
assigned to animal control duties include a 1.0 Animal Control Officer, and the vast majority of 
that person’s time is devoted to addressing issues related to dogs.  The difficulty in identifying 
owners of roaming cats and of addressing feral or community cats would make enforcement a 
challenge, and would require much more resource than is currently available.  Also, there would 
be significant effort involved in changing the community expectation around indoor/outdoor 
cats.  This is not a recommended option. 
 
 
Staff recommends that the Council consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 
cooperative agreement with Willamette Animal Guild, or WAG, to provide transportation and 
low cost spay and neuter services for Springfield residents who own cats.  According to research 
cited by WAG staff, cat ownership rates are fairly stable across income distributions, but cat 
owners who’s incomes are above the poverty line are 90% likely to spay/neuther their pets, 
whereas owners who’s incomes are below the poverty line are 90% likely NOT to spay/neuter 
their pets.  For Springfield residents, the issue is likely compounded by the fact that both of the 
regional low cost clinics, WAG and Greenhill, are located in West Eugene.  
 
 



MEMORANDUM 6/27/2013 Page 2 

 
WAG has offered to identify community partners, businesses, who are willing to manage the 
paperwork and to receive cats from residents on scheduled days.  WAG will transport the cats to 
the WAG facility, up to 15 per scheduled day, and return them to the business by days end for 
the owners to reclaim.  Attachment 1 provides a brief outline of the anticipated process as well 
as the expected costs for the program.  Funding beyond the $10 paid by residents and money 
contributed by WAG will come from donations from the community.  It is not anticipated that 
General Fund dollars will be used to support this program.  Rather, staff and public officials will 
advertise and promote the program, and encourage willing partners to donate funds for the 
cooperative effort.  When sufficient funds are in place for the next set of surgeries, another date 
will be scheduled and assigned to a community partner for reservations. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Take no action to change existing Animal Control 
Ordinances.  Authorize the City Manager to enter into a cooperative agreement with WAG 
to provide transportation and low cost spay/neuter services for cats. 

 



Springfield Upbeat 
July 1, 2013 
Trig-Star Competition Recognition – Michael Carson 
 
 
 
Trig-Star is an annual high school mathematics competition based on the practical application of 
Trigonometry.  Students that participate are not only provided with an opportunity to earn 
awards (1st place in Springfield High School was $75, $500 at the state level, and $2000 for 
winning the national competition), but also leave with a better understanding of the technical 
profession of Geomatics, which includes Land Surveying and Mapping.  Professional Land 
Surveyors use the Trig-Star program to advance communication with the communities they 
serve.  Local Land Surveying and Civil Engineering companies provide professionals who 
volunteer their time to explain how trigonometry is used to solve Land Surveying and Mapping 
problems.   
 
The exam is a timed exercise of one hour, during which students must solve trigonometric 
problems that incorporate the use of right triangle formulas, the law of sines, and the law of 
cosines.  Winners are determined by the most correct answers in the fastest time.   
 
Michael Carson from Springfield High School won this competition at the State Level.  Joe 
Ferguson, the State Trig-Star Coordinator, will present the certificate and $500 check to Michael. 
 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 7/1/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Amy Sowa 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3700 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE:  

COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

 
By motion, approval of the attached minutes. 
 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

 
The attached minutes are submitted for Council approval. 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Minutes: 

a) June 10, 2013 – Work Session 
b) June 17, 2013 – Work Session 
c) June 17, 2013 – Regular Meeting 

 
DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

 
None. 
 
 

 



City of Springfield 
Work Session Meeting 
 
     MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF  
     THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 
     MONDAY, JUNE 10, 2013 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in a work session in the Library Meeting Room, 225 Fifth Street, 
Springfield, Oregon, on Monday, June 10, 2013 at 5:30 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Wylie, Moore, Ralston, Woodrow and 
Brew.  Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City 
Attorneys Mary Bridget Smith and Lauren King, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
1. Priority Based Budgeting Results Validation Workshop. 
 
Finance Director Bob Duey presented this item.  The City sought to move from its current traditional 
budgeting practice to a Priority Based Budgeting process.  Over the next 6 months consultants from 
the Center for Priority Based Budgeting were expected to lead the City through a defined step by step 
process which would allow the City to identify our key programs, build result maps, score programs, 
and allocate cost and resources.  At this first work session, the consultants would be on-site to listen 
and receive direction from Council concerning the adopted Council goals and the interpretation of how 
the success of these goals may be evaluated for prioritizing of resources. 
 
In 2008, the City of Springfield’s 3-5 year financial outlook was positive with aggressive plans calling 
for the retirement of a special levy for public safety and continued development growth.  Since that 
time a prolonged economic downturn had resulted in the elimination of 60 positions at the City and 
only a slight sign of improvements to the City’s revenue forecast.   
 
Management, needing better guidance on how best to recommend the allocation of limited resources, 
had selected a program being promoted by the International City/County Managers Association 
(ICMA) called Priority Based Budgeting to help gather data.  First working with Council and its own 
goals, management was planning to spend about six months mapping City services and program costs 
to help identify which services were best able to meet those stated goals. Upon concluding this first 
phase of the effort, staff would report back to Council prior the preparation of the FY15 Proposed 
Budget.    
 
The Center for Priority Based Budgeting (PBB) had a contract for $38,000 to assist the Finance 
Department facilitating this city-wide effort.  
 
Mr. Duey said staff realized they wouldn’t be ready to use this program in time for this year’s budget 
process, so had been working on a multi-phased approach over the last few months. The consultants 
would help the City through the next phase, which would take about six months. That piece could be 
used when preparing next year’s budget. A possible future phase could be to take this out to the 
community, but that was dependent on the outcome of the process with staff and the Council during 
next year’s budget process. This process could also be beneficial in looking at things to add back into 
the budget when times were better. Feedback from Council tonight would help them determine how to 
conduct the workshop for staff tomorrow.  He introduced the consultants Chris Fabian and Jon 
Johnson.  



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
June 10, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
Mr. Johnson said tonight they would give an overview of how the process worked and answer their 
questions in terms of a high level overview of what would transpire over the next few months. They 
would end the exercise by working through a results validation so they could be ready to work with 
staff. He noted that there were a number of budgeting techniques and it was an evolution of learning. 
Budgeting should connect with strategic planning and priorities; it should match allocating funds to 
things that were important to the community.  
 
Mr. Johnson gave some background information on the partnership between himself and Mr. Fabian 
and Priority Based Budgeting. He had studied Budgeting for Outcomes and had some concerns about 
that particular process. Mr. Fabian, who came to work at Jefferson County with Mr. Johnson, had been 
working on implementation of Budgeting for Outcomes in Fort Collins, Colorado. They both had 
concerns about that process, and together they worked to improve on those things while still matching 
the way resources were allocated with the things that were important to their community. In Jefferson 
County, they developed two initiatives – Fiscal Health and Fiscal Wellness. Fiscal health was the 
foundation and fiscal wellness was the ability to sustain it long-term. That became priority based 
budgeting. 
 
Mr. Fabian said this tool had been used for organizations struggling with their budget and those doing 
well. He discussed how the program was used in Fairfield, California. The City Manager from 
Fairfield found that this was a different way to look at their situation and the budget. During stressful 
times, it was difficult to see clearly. Priority based budgeting was a tool to look more clearly at the 
situation and the budget. He noted the other cities they had worked with throughout the United States, 
some large, some mid-size and some very small. This program worked in all situations.  
 
Mr. Johnson said he and Mr. Fabian wrote about how they were progressing after using the program in 
Jefferson County. It caught the attention of the International City/County Management Association 
(ICMA), Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the National League of Cities (NLC). 
Those organizations had encouraged them to bring this to other communities.  ICMA established their 
Center for Management Strategies and said Priority Based Budgeting was a leading practice.  They 
encouraged all of their membership to look at this as the next approach in looking at budgets. The 
NLC  had been very supportive and Kathy Novak, a 19 year elected official in Colorado and former 
NLC President was also helping with their presentations from her perspective as a former elected 
official.  Tonight they would be focusing on the process and sharing some case studies. This was a 
process and they continued to learn from every organization they worked with to improve the process.  
 
Mr. Fabian discussed the across the board cuts approach and how it could be ineffective.  It was tough 
to show favoritism to some programs and not to others. Every program was important. The credit 
rating agency, Moody’s, had recognized that across the board budget cuts could be a way to avoid 
tough decisions and had negative impacts. Communities that focused on values of the community 
were looked upon more favorably by credit rating agencies. 
 
Mr. Fabian and Mr. Johnson described the steps to success in PBB.  
 

1. Determine Results.  Look at what business the city was in as local government and what the 
community expected of the city. Look at the objectives and goals. This should be at a high 
level and include the outcomes the City should be achieving. The results should be something 
that were consistent over time, although could be tweaked over time as the community 
changed. Places to start could include vision and mission statements, and Council goals. These 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
June 10, 2013 
Page 3 
 

would be the ongoing reasons the City existed and would take place over time.  He provided 
examples from other communities.  Some programs did not recognize internal functions that 
were important in keeping the organization running properly. PPB divided the results into 
community results (external) and governance results (internal) because both were important to 
the function of the organization.  
 

2. Clarify Result Definitions. Different things achieved each result in different communities; 
therefore the results needed to be defined to fit each organization. During the staff workshop 
on Tuesday, they would be gathering data to define each of the results which would be 
identified at the end of the work session. A results map would be developed. He provided an 
example and discussed the information presented.  This exercise identified what was important 
to the community and then determined what good governance was needed to reach those 
goals.   

 
3. Identify Programs. This determined the things the city actually did in a detailed list of all of 

the programs and services offered by the city. That would be part of the work done with staff 
during the workshop. That list was sometimes very lengthy for a city the size of Springfield. 
Each department would have programs that were critical to the organization, and each 
department would likely have programs or services that were less important.  This would give 
an opportunity to look at what the city did and compare it to the results. 

 
4. Score Programs Against Results and Attributes.  There were other reasons programs were 

provided besides producing results, such as mandates and the reliance on the city to provide a 
program.  Looking at these reasons provided an opportunity to look to partnerships to see if 
another agency could partner with the city to provide a service or if the other agency was or 
could take on a program. Cost recovery was another filter to use in scoring. Each program’s 
relevance would also be considered.  He provided an example of scoring for mandated 
programs. There were two parts to the scoring. The first was self assessment where each 
department scored their own programs and how well results were achieved.  The second part 
was peer review which provided quality control.  Through this exercise, they learned how to 
ask better questions. 
 

Mr. Fabian said that Kathy Novak had helped design a series of questions. Her perspective on PBB 
was that it helped bring policy questions forward that were often on elected officials’ minds. Some of 
the questions included which programs were the highest priority in what was expected by the 
community, which programs were truly mandated, which programs were self imposed, and which 
programs were only provided by the community.  
 
Mr. Johnson said when answering those questions, they could look at other options and public or 
public/private partnerships. They could identify whether or not there were programs that were no 
longer needed or need to be enhanced. They could also look at programs that may no longer be 
helping the City achieve their outcomes, and asking how much they were spending to achieve 
outcomes. Many of these questions could be difficult to answer especially from a budgetary 
perspective only. 

 
Mr. Fabian said coming out of the peer review process a scoring scale would be developed. He 
displayed an example and explained how different programs fell into quartile one (highest), quartile 
two, quartile three and quartile four (lowest). This scale showed how much was being spent on each 
quartile. There were a number of filters that could be applied to view the information in a variety of 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
June 10, 2013 
Page 4 
 
ways.  Also, community and governance programs could be viewed separately, or together.  One of 
the filters was by fund. 
 
Councilor Brew asked if they could show which services were included in the fourth quartile for each 
fund. 
 
Mr. Fabian said they could see those programs. He showed how that could work with the filters. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that was an important piece of looking at this process. Core services were different 
in each community depending on the results of each. 
 
Mr. Fabian said they could look at the departments separately.  
 
Councilor VanGordon asked what the City of Boulder did with the information from this process. He 
asked if they changed programs, worked to move quartile 4 programs to quartile 1, etc. 
 
Mr. Johnson said it was combination of looking at the programs from all different angles, asking a lot 
of questions mainly about quartile 3 and 4 programs.  They looked at partnerships and different ways 
to do things. In their third year they were expecting some new revenues so looked at adding new 
programs for one of their results. Unfortunately, the revenues didn’t come in so instead of stopping the 
programs, they looked at how they could shift resources to the higher priority programs. They used the 
tool to determine what should be changed in order to provide the higher quartile programs. Over time, 
they had shifted resources and reduced in some areas. 
 
Councilor VanGordon asked if the city used this process every year. Yes. He asked if resources were 
moved from quartiles 3 and 4 up to quartiles 1 and 2, if the programs moved there as well.  
 
Mr. Johnson said in many cases the programs changed and resources were moved to supplement other 
programs. Some programs were looked at to determine if they could be done differently to better 
achieve the results. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said in theory they could make a management change in programs in quartile 3 
and 4 to bring them further in line with the council goals and up to quartiles 1 and 2. 
 
Mr. Johnson said it had been used in different ways depending on the community’s needs. He referred 
to the score chart and noted that it could also be used to show the community how the City was doing. 
 
Mayor Lundberg asked if this was all done at staff level.  
 
Mr. Johnson said Council would determine the result staff needed to use for the exercise. After the 
workshop, staff would bring the result maps back to Council. Staff would then craft the inventories 
and go through the evaluation process. Once that was complete, staff would ask Council to assist with 
policy questions and framing the recommendations so they were clear. 
 
Councilor Ralston asked who thought we needed to do something like this. He felt the City did a good 
job prioritizing services. He asked why we were spending $38,000. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
June 10, 2013 
Page 5 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said the City did a good job of establishing community priorities. As we faced more 
difficult times in terms of the budget, it was very difficult to balance the budget without getting into 
cutting some of the higher priority services. This provided a tool to help with that process. 
 
Councilor Ralston said that was the Council’s job. They knew the priorities and took care of them. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said this was an additional tool to help them with that. He provided the example of the 
last budget cycle when there was a lot of discussion about Lane Regional Air Protection Authority 
(LRAPA). This tool would have helped them discuss where it fit in their priorities to make a more 
informed decision. This would provide a different lens to look at that issue. There were many other 
issues that came up in the budget. 
 
Councilor Ralston said this would be taking a lot of staff time that could be used for something else. 
 
Councilor Brew this looked at what the city already did, and seemed to make the presumption things 
were being done at the right level. The City may be mandated to do certain things, but it didn’t look at 
the level we were doing that service. In some cases, we could be exceeding the requirements and could 
scale it back and still meet the mandate. They needed to look at the scale of services. 
 
Mr. Johnson said they would be providing them with several ways to look at the information. They 
had the information on what was mandated and sometimes mandated items were also helping achieve 
the results. The tool included filters to allow them to pull out information that opened the door for 
additional questions, such as the level of mandate. Through the process, they would ask questions 
about all of the programs. For all programs, the question of whether or not there was a service delivery 
problem should be asked. This was a guide to start someplace and then talk about all of the programs. 
Not everything would happen in the first year, but was a process adopted to change the way the budget 
was done from now into the future. 
 
Mr. Fabian said other filters could be used for programs that were in quartile 3 or 4 that citizens relied 
on the City to provide to determine whether or not other agencies offered the same service. This 
opened it up for questions about partnering or turning the service over to someone else. 
 
Councilor Moore asked if the mandates could be broken down by who was mandating the service. 
 
Mr. Johnson said those could be set up to make the best sense. The City of Boulder put State and 
Federal mandates in one grouping and the City and Code mandates in another.  
 
Councilor Moore said if they had that information, they could perhaps speak to the legislature about 
the impact of unfunded mandates.  
 
Mr. Johnson said this helped identify those mandates. 
 
Mr. Fabian the filters were very powerful. He provided examples of how they could be used for City 
mandates.   
 
Mr. Johnson said it focused communities on the appropriate conversations that were needed. It wasn’t 
something that could be analyzed in one-year, so a starting point needed to be determined.  Looking at 
things that the City was doing that weren’t helping accomplish the community’s results was a great 
place to start. The City of Boulder looked to see if they were doing anything that wasn’t 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
June 10, 2013 
Page 6 
 
accomplishing one result. They found that $21M of their budget was being spent on programs that 
were low priority in terms of achieving the community’s results. The presentation was meant to give 
them the perspective that the tool led to the conversations that helped them decide whether or not they 
were allocating resources to things that were important to the community.  
 
Mr. Johnson said they would ask Council to complete an exercise to help the consultant determine 
where they would start during the staff workshop on Tuesday. Council had already done a great job in 
establishing goals. Some of the goals combined some major concepts, so had been listed on the 
exercise in a slightly different way.  
 
Mr. Fabian handed out the exercise for Council to fill out. For the exercise, each Council member had 
$100 of fictitious money to allocate to each result. There was space for additional results if they chose 
to add some. 
 
Mr. Johnson said these were just the community results. He was aware that they had a financial 
sustainability result for all of the internal functions, but that was not part of this exercise. That would 
be discussed more during the staff workshop on Tuesday. 
 
Councilor Moore asked how the community goals had been incorporated into the exercise. 
 
Mr. Johnson explained how they separated out the goals into the community results listed. These were 
suggested results, but could be interpreted differently. 
 
Councilor Moore asked if infrastructure was governance. 
 
Mr. Johnson said transportation and wastewater were in place to benefit the community so were part 
of the community results.  A component of that could address the internal facilities, but this result was 
the part that benefited the community. 
 
Councilor Wylie asked if managing well-planned growth would be in the new areas. 
 
Mr. Johnson said as defined, it would be that component. The definitions would be critical. The 
information provided by staff would be used to make sure those concepts were included in the result 
maps so it included all the components of managed well planned growth. 
 
Councilor Ralston asked how hometown feel had anything to do with environmental quality and 
livability. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that was what they were asking Council to help them define. If they would prefer 
those to be separate results, that was their choice.  
 
Mayor Lundberg said during the exercise, they could cross one out they didn’t like and rewrite it how 
they would prefer it to read, or just mark that they would like it separated. 
 
Councilor Ralston asked about the dollar value for each item. 
 
Mr. Fabian said the dollar amount was not necessarily monetary, but rather a way to identify 
importance.  
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
June 10, 2013 
Page 7 
 
Mr. Johnson said they could weight certain things towards the scoring. He explained.  
 
Councilor Moore asked if they were supposed to finish the exercise during this meeting. Yes. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said this exercise was to give staff direction and was only the beginning. 
 
Mr. Johnson said it was a chance for the Council to let the consultants know if there was something 
that should not be there or something that was missing.  
 
The exercise sheets were gathered by the consultants. 
 
Mr. Duey said the consultants would like to tabulate the sheets from the Council. They could move on 
to the next topic and come back to review the results after that discussion if the Council chose. 
 
Councilor Brew said he didn’t feel comfortable because they hadn’t truly defined each result. 
 
Mr. Johnson said this would be the starting point and results maps would be created. They could then 
re-evaluate these once the detailed definitions were drafted. The exercise could be re-administered 
after they saw the results maps. 
 
Council chose to go to the next topic and then hear the results from the consultants. 
 
2. 13th Street Right of Way (ROW) Development, Public Outreach Results Follow-up. 
 
Civil Engineer Michael Liebler presented the staff report on this item. On May 20th, City staff held a 
work session with City Council to review public outreach results in reference to improving the un-
improved right-of-way (ROW) on 13th Street from L to N Street. Council requested more information 
on the area in terms of the possibility of vacating the ROW to adjoining properties and clarification of 
the areas characteristics and usefulness as a pedestrian and bicycle connection.  Staff was seeking 
Council direction on how to move forward in relation to the upcoming 10th and N Street Sewer project 
work within this unimproved area.   
 
In accordance with provisions of SDC 5.20-120.A, the City Council could adopt a resolution to initiate 
a vacation of public right-of-way and then proceed to adopt a vacation Ordinance. Staff would perform 
the appropriate research and investigations into the sites vacation/dedication history, utility conflict 
and considerations, and transportation needs as laid out in the attached Memo (Attachment 2 of the 
agenda packet).     
 
At this time, City of Springfield staff recommended retaining the ROW for public transportation/utility 
needs and capitalizing on the cost savings related to performing the work to install the bike/pedestrian 
path with landscaping as part of the sewer project and as supported by the results from the public 
outreach. 
 
Mr. Liebler reviewed the vacation process. He described the area and where the utilities were located. 
The area would not allow development. He displayed a map showing the usefulness of the area as a 
bike/pedestrian path and the connectivity in this area.  
 
Mr. Grimaldi said the other question Council had asked was regarding crime information in the area. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
June 10, 2013 
Page 8 
 
Mr. Liebler distributed information about police activity in the area which was minimal. 
 
Discussion was held regarding why the Police report had been requested. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said they were at a decision point for this project. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said creating connectivity was a great idea. She didn’t see it as a troublesome 
process in order to get it done.  
 
Councilor Ralston asked how much would be spent for the bike/pedestrian path and grass. 
 
Mr. Liebler said there were cost savings in adding this in with the sewer project. It would be about 
$20,000 for the path and $13,000 for the grassy area, making the total cost of approximately $33,000. 
Willamalane would mow the grassy area on a regular basis at no additional cost to the City.  
 
Councilor Wylie said it sounded like a good cooperative project. The connectivity for walkers and 
bikers for safety in the neighborhood was a good thing. 
 
Councilor Brew said his first choice was to pave the path and his second choice would be to vacate it 
to the property owners. 
 
Councilor Moore said she saw the long term benefit to the neighborhood and felt it would improve the 
value of the adjoining neighbors’ properties. She was in favor of connectivity.  
 
Councilor VanGordon agreed. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said part of the Springfield Transportation System Plan included connectivity to get 
people to walk, bike and get around off the street if possible. This provided connectivity in a 
neighborhood that could use it. General consensus of the Council was to put in the path and the grass.  
 
Mr. Liebler thanked Councilor Moore for attending the public meeting and being involved in the 
process. 
 
1. Priority Based Budgeting Results Validation Workshop - resumed 
 
Mr. Duey resumed the Priority Based Budget topic. 
 
Mr. Fabian said before they moved forward with the definitions, they wanted a level of agreement 
with the results from the exercise. He displayed the results.  Almost everyone put dollars into 
everything. Some had less than others because they had been broken out. The total amount invested 
under each result was important to help them identify the highest priorities. They did have the ability 
later in the process to weight the results. The results definitions would be brought back to Council 
before they made any decisions about weighting the results. From the exercise, the consultants felt 
good about moving forward with the results listed. The one question that remained was whether or not 
to break out ‘Environmental Quality’ and the ‘Hometown Feel’ into two separate results, or keep them 
as one for the staff workshop. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said she broke out environmental quality because she thought of it as more of a 
regional partnership than a stand-alone result for the City. 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
June 10, 2013 
Page 9 
 
 
Councilor Ralston said it was more of an unfunded mandate. 
 
Mr. Johnson said they wanted to make sure all were in agreement before moving forward. 
 
Councilor Ralston said he felt they were separate. Hometown Feel was something the City wanted to 
have and was more of a package of many things. 
 
Councilor Moore said she felt environmental quality and small town feel related to community 
livability. She would prefer to emphasize community livability. 
 
Councilor Brew referred to the result ‘Desirable Place to Live and Work’ and said that all things led to 
that result. It was similar with ‘Hometown Feel’. 
 
Mr. Fabian said they would see some overlap. 
 
Councilor Wylie said environmental quality, community livability and hometown feel meant to her 
that we had clean water, clean air, streets laid out, sewers functioning properly, etc. The result of 
‘Diverse and Inclusive Place to Live and Work’ came about to address treating all people fairly in our 
community with our mixed population. They needed to go back to when they first came up with the 
goals. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said there was so much overlap on all of them that they could spend all evening 
rearranging everything.  If each one was separated to become their own result, that brought on more 
work to be done for each. She asked if everyone would be comfortable leaving them in the same 
category to make it easier for staff to move forward. 
 
Councilor Ralston said that was fine, but he still felt they were completely separate. He would score 
environmental quality different from hometown feel. 
 
Mr. Johnson said when they moved forward in the result definitions, they could watch to see if 
‘Hometown Feel’ was showing up in the result definitions of the other results. 
 
Councilor Brew said Councilor Ralston did have a point. Council didn’t develop the goals to look at 
the budget so they didn’t work well. He was fine with the result left as one or split in two. 
 
Mr. Johnson said they would go forward with the results as listed on the sheet, but taking into 
consideration that they would want to make sure they were articulating those definitions with those 
thoughts in mind. If there was still a feeling that more work needed to be done after the definitions 
were created, they could make some adjustments. He felt they would still be able to see those areas 
whether separated or together. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said they would be looking at these along with programs so the results would be 
broken down many more times. 
 
Mr. Duey thanked Council for their time in going through this workshop. Staff would be coming back 
to Council sometime later in the year with the definitions. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
June 10, 2013 
Page 10 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:23 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder – Amy Sowa 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
Amy Sowa 
City Recorder 



City of Springfield 
Work Session Meeting 
 
     MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF  
     THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 
     MONDAY, JUNE 17, 2013 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in a work session in the Jesse Maine Meeting Room, 225 Fifth 
Street, Springfield, Oregon, on Monday, June 17, 2013 at 6:00 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Wylie, Moore, Ralston, Woodrow and 
Brew. Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City 
Attorney Mary Bridget Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
1. Springfield Transportation System Plan Update – Review of Preferred Alternative.  
 
Senior Transportation Planner David Reesor presented the staff report on this item.  The 
Transportation System Plan (TSP) update would address long-range (20-year) transportation needs for 
the City of Springfield in part by listing transportation projects needed for the 20 year planning period. 
These projects were based on recommendations from project Committees, public input, consultant and 
City staff. The “preferred alternative” was the final collection of projects grouped into separate 
categories.   
 
The Transportation System Plan (TSP) update was intended to serve as a blueprint to guide future 
multi-modal transportation system improvements and investment decisions for the City of Springfield. 
As such, the TSP would include project lists that further defined locations of specific transportation 
projects for the next 20 years. The final project list to be included in the TSP was referred to as the 
“preferred alternative.”  
 
The TSP Core Team, Project Management Team, Stakeholder Advisory Committee, Technical 
Advisory Committee, and general public provided input to develop a range of projects to evaluate. 
Project evaluation criteria, developed with input from these committees, were developed to help select 
projects. Criteria included considerations for property owner impacts, mobility, safety, and 
connectivity. Technical model outputs helped evaluate future congestion and mobility levels based on 
land use inputs. Attachment 2 of the agenda packet provided background information on the 
evaluation process for reference.  
 
Transportation infrastructure projects had been organized into seven different lists, or categories, in the 
draft TSP.  Rather than ranking projects, the project lists were grouped into shorter term and long term 
time frames, and included an additional Opportunity Projects list, Study Area list, As Development 
Occurs project list, and a Transit Projects list. The time frames were not rigid and could overlap. This 
project categorization structure would provide the City the most flexibility in adjusting to 
infrastructure needs over the life of the Plan. 
 
Council last reviewed the draft TSP project lists during the January 28th, 2013 work session. Since 
then, staff had made some revisions to the list based on input from the Technical Advisory Committee, 
Stakeholder Advisory Committee, and Project Team staff. The combination of these individual project 
lists comprised the “preferred alternative” as listed in Attachment 1 of the agenda packet. Footnotes in 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
June 17, 2013 
Page 2 
 
the tables in Attachment 1 showed which projects changed categories since the January City Council 
work session. The corresponding maps were in Attachment 3 of the agenda packet.  
 
Mr. Reesor reviewed the changes made from the last review of the preferred alternatives.  Four 
projects were moved from the short-term list to the long-term list. Projects in the long-term list may 
not go forward unless other funding sources became available such as grants, but it was good to have 
them listed in that event. One project was moved from the short-term list to the as developed list. He 
explained further. A listening booth was set up at SPROUT during the Farmers Market last Friday. 
Good input was received from citizens during that event. There would be another opportunity for 
Council to see this in the entire plan. 
 
Councilor Ralston asked which of the four projects got shifted to the long term from the short term. 
 
Mr. Reesor said those moved were projects PD34, PB48, PB49, PB50, PB51, PB52 and PB53. Project 
R61 was new and came from the Sustainable City Year (SCY) group that worked with the bicycle 
planning class. 
 
Councilor Brew asked if R61 was in City limits. Yes. 
 
Mr. Reesor said project PB4 was moved from the short-term list to the As Development Occurs list. 
Staff had been working with PeaceHealth on this project in coordination with their master plan. 
Project PB7, PB10 and PB22 were moved from short-term to long-term based on input from 
Willamalane. Study projects S-13, S-14, S-15 and S-16a were new. These were added from input from 
the City’s traffic division to address a large volume of accidents in the vicinity.  
 
Councilor Ralston asked about the number of accidents. 
 
Traffic Supervisor Brian Barnett said that area was one of the top accident locations in the City. There 
were also some opportunities to improve circulation between Laura Street and Pioneer Parkway. He 
explained. 
 
Councilor Moore asked about the pathway that Council just approved on 13th and N Streets as part of 
the sewer project. She asked why that was not listed. 
 
Mr. Reesor said the list included projects planned further out and that project would be done before the 
Plan was adopted. The projects on the short-term list would be done in the first 5-8 years. Those time 
frames would be refined later. There would likely be some overlaps of the different lengths of time to 
allow some flexibility. The short-term projects were those that could be done more easily and at a 
lower cost. 
 
Councilor Brew referred to several projects near Hayden Bridge Road on the map showing the As 
Development Occurs Projects. That area was outside City limits. He asked what type of development 
that served. 
 
Mr. Reesor said it was outside City limits, but inside the urban growth boundary (UGB). There needed 
to be some upgrades when the property was annexed to bring it up to urban standards. It currently 
served County land, but since it was in the UGB they needed to have a plan to bring it up to standards 
as it was developed. 
 
Councilor Brew asked if a Local Improvement District (LID) would be used for those improvements. 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
June 17, 2013 
Page 3 
 
 
Mr. Reesor said that was a possibly. Those details would be worked out at the project level at the time 
the project was ready. 
 
Councilor VanGordon referred to the Laura Street study project. There were other projects that also 
related to Laura Street. He asked if those were separate or if the study would be done first. He noted 
the different projects that related to that area. 
 
Mr. Reesor said typically the studies would be done first. Each project was listed as a separate project, 
although they may be similar or in close proximity. He said he would footnote those to clarify the 
studies would be done first. 
 
Councilor VanGordon asked for an explanation of Project R11.  
 
Mr. Reesor said that project would take advantage of an existing right-of-way to provide better 
connectivity. They hoped for other connectivity in that area. 
 
Councilor VanGordon asked projects R28, R39, R40 and R42 which were all roundabouts in the same 
area. His understanding was that some traffic lights would be required to feed smoothly into the 
roundabouts.  
 
Mr. Reesor said some of those roundabouts were part of the Marcola master plan approval. Normally, 
they would evaluate the whole area with signals and roundabouts considered. Through the master 
planning process, the roundabouts were required. There were other intersections listed that identified 
either a roundabout or a signal. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said if lights were required to feed that area, they should be coordinated with 
the roundabouts. He asked about projects R20, R22 and R23. This area was south of the Glenwood 
Refinement Plan and there was nothing there now. It was on the As Development Occurs list, but there 
would be a lot of development that occurred before those upgrades were needed. He asked how much 
development was needed before those upgrades were required. 
 
Mr. Reesor said it was difficult to say and that was one reason this was not in a firm time frame. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said some of the projects were on the outside of 20 year limit. There was an advantage to 
having these projects on the list should development occur or opportunities for funding come along. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said having it on the plan wouldn’t hurt us, as long as they were within a 
reasonable time frame. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said the Transportation System Plan and project list should include everything 
possible just in case we wanted to get it done sooner for funding. It took a long time to get things from 
the bottom of the list to the top of the list for funding purposes. It may or may not be done the way it 
was planned because things could change, but it was good to have an idea we wanted to do it and 
having in our Plan gave us more leverage. 
 
Mr. Reesor said that was a good way to look at it. He noted that with a 20 year plan, nothing would 
happen as expected and there would always be changes. Staff was making an educated planning effort. 
The long-term projects were outside of the funding expectations. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
June 17, 2013 
Page 4 
 
Councilor Woodrow asked about a pedestrian crossing across Bob Straub Parkway at Daisy Street. 
She did not see that project in this list. This was a very difficult area to cross and was important for 
those living on the west side of Bob Straub Parkway. 
 
Mr. Boyatt noted that Project R53 addressed a crossing at that area and was on the long-term list. 
 
Mr. Reesor said staff would work with the consultant to clarify the project. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said it was very important to the community and needed to be addressed. 
 
Mr. Barnett said that could be a situation for two separate projects: one project for the roadway and 
one project for pedestrians. 
 
Councilor Ralston said the Centennial extension to 35th Street (Project R43) seemed like a very good 
idea, although it looked like it went right through the Fire Department. He also referred to Project R42 
and the roundabout. It didn’t seem like there was enough space for a roundabout at that location and 
he wasn’t sure what type of development could occur at that location to warrant a roundabout. 
 
Mr. Reesor said he would make a note about the location of the fire station. 
 
Mr. Barnett said he had been to the site of R42 and worked with the fire department about access 
issues. There was a fair amount of property between the building and the intersection. Because the 
building was on the north of Centennial, he felt there would be space for their driveway to come out of 
the service bays and into the extension, still leaving room for a compact roundabout. The roundabout 
would need to be designed to move all trucks because it was a truck route. 
 
Councilor Ralston said that made a lot of sense and he was glad it was on the short-term list. 
 
Mr. Reesor said staff had heard a lot of input for more east-west connections. 
 
Councilor Moore referred to Project R2. There was one lane for the bus to go down and around behind 
the hospital, but that road was not open to traffic. It was noted it was temporary. She asked if Project 
R2 would open that up to traffic. Residents in that area were upset that the bus could go down that 
road, but they were not able to use it. 
 
Mr. Reesor said it was currently temporary, but this project would open it up to all traffic and would 
improve and widen the road for use by vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said this was a project that had been on the list for a long time. There may not be a 
win-win situation. 
 
Tom Boyatt, Community Development Manager in Transportation, said it could be depending on the 
players. The PeaceHealth master plan included a provision that the street was a requirement as the 
hospital property developed. He spoke of the development in that area with some residential mixed in. 
That northeast link was necessary to serve development on either side, but there were people that 
really liked living there. 
 
Councilor Moore said there was concern that the buses could use it, but she understood why. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
June 17, 2013 
Page 5 
 
Councilor Brew referred to Project R43 and said he assumed that hadn’t gone through because of the 
railroad track. He asked where the roundabout would be placed. 
 
Mr. Barnett said 28th Street was separated from the railroad tracks by a significant distance, much 
further away than on Olympic. There was adequate separation between the railroad and the 
intersection. There would be a challenge in getting a crossing permit from the railroad. Typically, they 
would have to trade one crossing for another. Staff would explore that further. 
 
Councilor Brew complimented Mr. Reesor on his work. Councilor Brew had served on the Citizen 
Advisory Committee and Mr. Reesor was trying to listen to and combine information from many 
groups. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said the many different opinions could be seen just by looking at the list. It had been 
a long process and was very well vetted. She appreciated everyone that had been part of the process. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:36 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder – Amy Sowa 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
Amy Sowa 
City Recorder 



City of Springfield 
Regular Meeting 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF  
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 

MONDAY, JUNE 17, 2013 
 

The City of Springfield Council met in regular session in the Council Chambers, 225 Fifth Street, 
Springfield, Oregon, on Monday, June 17, 2013 at 7:00 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Wylie, Moore, Ralston, Woodrow and 
Brew. Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City 
Attorney Joe Leahy, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Lundberg. 
 
SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT 
 
1. Accessibility Awareness Month Proclamation. 
 
Mayor Lundberg read from the proclamation, and proclaimed July 2013 as Accessibility Awareness 
Month. 
 
2. National HIV Testing Day Proclamation. 
 
Mayor Lundberg read from the proclamation, and proclaimed June 27, 2013 as National HIV Testing 
Day. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. Claims 
 

a. Approval for the May 2013, Disbursements for Approval 
 
2. Minutes 
 

a. May 28, 2013 – Work Session 
b. June 3, 2013 – Work Session 
c. June 3, 2013 – Regular Meeting 

 
3. Resolutions 
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 2013-07 – A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO AWARD COMPETITIVE BIDS, REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS, OTHER PERSONAL 
SERVICES CONTRACTS EXEMPT FROM BIDDING REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE 
PURCHASING REGULATIONS, AND APPROVE AMENDMENTS TO PUBLIC 
CONTRACTS IN CONFORMANCE WITH CITY OF SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 17, 2013 
Page 2 
 

AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS DURING THE PERIOD OF JULY 16, 2013 
THROUGH SEPTEMBER 8, 2013 WHILE THE COMMON COUNCIL IS IN RECESS. 

 
4. Ordinances 
 
5. Other Routine Matters 
 

a. Authorize the City Manager to Sign a Contract with Matthew Cox with the Firm of Leahy, 
VanVactor, Cox & Melendy LLC for General Counsel Services.  

b. Authorize the City Manager to Execute an IGA with the Lane Transit District (LTD) to 
Provide City Staff Time Reimbursement on the Main-McVey Transit Feasibility Study. 

c. Authorize City Manager to Enter into Contract with City County Insurance Services (CCIS) 
for Workers’ Compensation Coverage Effective July 1, 2013. 

 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WYLIE WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WOODROW TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR WITH CHECK #121859 OF THE 
MAY 2013 DISBURSEMENTS REMOVED.  THE MOTION PASSED WITH A VOTE OF 6 
FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
ITEMS REMOVED 
 
Councilor VanGordon recused himself from this item as the payment was made to his employer, 
United Parcel Service, and would be a conflict of interest. 
 
1.     a.   Check #121859 of the May 2013 Disbursements. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WYLIE WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WOODROW TO APPROVE CHECK #121859 OF THE MAY 2013 DISBURSEMENTS.  THE 
MOTION PASSED WITH A VOTE OF 5 FOR AND 0 AGAINST (1 ABSTENTION – 
VANGORDON). 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS - Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request to speak cards are available at 

both entrances.  Please present cards to City Recorder.  Speakers may not 
yield their time to others. 

 
1. Supplemental Budget Resolution. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2013-08 – A RESOLUTION ADJUSTING RESOURCES AND 
REQUIREMENTS IN THE FOLLOWING FUNDS: GENERAL, STREET, SPECIAL 
REVENUE, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, REGIONAL WASTEWATER REVENUE 
BOND CAPITAL PROJECT, DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS, STREET CAPITAL, BOND 
SINKING, STORM DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT SDC, STORM DRAINAGE 
REIMBURSEMENT SDC, SANITARY SEWER REIMBURSEMENT SDC, SANITARY 
SEWER IMPROVEMENT SDC, SDC TRANSPORTATION REIMBURSEMENT, SDC 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT, REGIONAL WASTEWATER, STORM DRAINAGE 
OPERATIONS, AMBULANCE, BOOTH-KELLY, INSURANCE, VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT 
AND SDC ADMINISTRATION. 

 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 17, 2013 
Page 3 
 
Finance Director Bob Duey presented the staff report on this item. At various times during the fiscal 
year the Council was requested to make adjustments to the annual budget to reflect needed changes in 
planned activities, to recognize new revenues, or to make other required changes.  These adjustments 
to resources and requirements changed the current budget and were processed through supplemental 
budget requests scheduled by the Finance Department on an annual basis. 
 
This was the last of three scheduled FY13 supplemental budget requests to come before Council.  The 
supplemental budget being presented included adjusting resources and requirements in: General, 
Street, Special Revenue, Community Development, Regional Wastewater Revenue Bond Capital 
Project, Development Projects, Street Capital, Bond Sinking, Storm Drainage Improvement SDC, 
Storm Drainage Reimbursement SDC, Sanitary Sewer Reimbursement SDC, Sanitary Sewer 
Improvement SDC, SDC Transportation Reimbursement, SDC Transportation Improvement, Regional 
Wastewater, Storm Drainage Operations, Ambulance, Booth-Kelly, Insurance, Vehicle & Equipment 
and SDC Administration. 
 
Mr. Duey highlighted several of the changes in the supplemental budget and explained them.  
 
The City Council was asked to approve the Supplemental Budget Resolution. 
 
Mayor Lundberg opened the public hearing. 
 
No one appeared to speak. 
 
Mayor Lundberg closed the public hearing. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WYLIE WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WOODROW TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2013-08.  THE MOTION PASSED WITH A 
VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 

 
2. Resolution Certifying the City’s Eligibility to Receive State Shared Revenues from Cigarette, Gas 

and Liquor Taxes. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2013-09 – A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD CERTIFYING ELIGIBILITY FOR STATE-SHARED REVENUES 
FROM CIGARETTE, GAS AND LIQUOR TAXES, APPROVING THE CITY OF 
SPRINGFIELD’S PARTICIPATION IN THE STATE REVENUE SHARING PROGRAM, AND 
DECLARING THE CITY’S ELECTION TO RECEIVE STATE REVENUES PURSUANT TO 
OREGON REVISED STATUTES 221.760 AND 221.770. 

 
Finance Director Bob Duey presented the staff report on this item.  The law provided that cities 
located within counties having more the 100,000 inhabitants, according to the most recent Federal 
decennial census must provide four or more municipal services from a specific list to be eligible to 
receive state-shared cigarette, liquor and highway taxes under ORS 221.760.  The accompanying 
resolution would satisfy that requirement. 
 
To be eligible to receive state shared revenues in the ensuing fiscal year, the City must provide at least 
four of seven eligible services, and perform five additional actions: 

 
1. Advertise and hold a public hearing before the Budget Committee 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 17, 2013 
Page 4 
 

2. Advertise and hold a public hearing before the City Council 
3. Adopt a resolution certifying the City is eligible to receive funds under the ORS 221.760 
4. Adopt a resolution approving the City’s participation in the program  
5. File a copy of the resolution with the State of Oregon by July 31st  

 
A public hearing was advertised and held before the Budget Committee on April 30, 2013.  The 
proposed resolution would satisfy items 2, 3 and 4.  Upon adoption, the City’s Budget Officer would 
file the appropriate documentation with the State. 
 
Mayor Lundberg opened the public hearing. 
 
No one appeared to speak. 
 
Mayor Lundberg closed the public hearing. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WYLIE WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WOODROW TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2013-09.  THE MOTION PASSED WITH A 
VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 

 
3. Fiscal Year 2013/14 Springfield City Budget Adoption. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2013-10 – A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2013/14 
SPRINGFIELD CITY BUDGET, MAKING APPROPRIATIONS AND LEVYING A 
PROPERTY TAX. 

 
Finance Director Bob Duey presented the staff report on this item. The City Council was requested to 
hold a public hearing on Fiscal Year 2013/14 (FY14) to approve City Budget, and approve a 
resolution to adopt the Fiscal Year 2013/14 City budget, making appropriations and levying a property 
tax. 
 
Mr. Duey provided highlights of the budget and the changes made by the Budget Committee to the 
original budget presented by the City Manager. The Budget Committee directed staff to schedule work 
sessions before January 2014 on funding for Lane Regional Air Protection Authority (LRAPA), 
holiday lights from Transient Room Tax, and Lane Metro Partnership. 
 
Mayor Lundberg opened the public hearing. 
 
1. Dan Egan, 850 6th Street, Springfield, OR.  Mr. Egan was the Executive Director of the 

Springfield Chamber of Commerce. He thanked the Council for including the Springfield 
Chamber contract in the budget. The 1100 members appreciated having the Visitors Services 
contract with the City which went back to 1983. He also applauded the decision to hold in 
abeyance the usual Metro Partnership contribution while the Chamber and the City sought a better 
economic development future for this region. He applauded the Mayor and City Manager for 
working through this. It was complicated, but in the end there would be a better agency that 
represented Springfield’s and the region’s wishes. Taking this time would help to make sure it was 
done right. He thanked the Mayor for her position and discussion on the points about how vital it 
was for a vibrant economy in Springfield to serve our citizens. 

 
Mayor Lundberg closed the public hearing. 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 17, 2013 
Page 5 
 
 
Mayor Lundberg asked that Council not only come back later to discuss the Lane Metro Partnership 
funding, but that those funds get set aside as an economic development tool before the budget was 
approved. There had been a lot of discussion about what economic development meant, not only to the 
community but regionally and those conversations were ongoing. If those funds could be set aside, the 
Council would not be rushed by the budget cycle and could take a good hard look at what that meant. 
 
Councilor Brew confirmed that Mayor Lundberg was saying that rather than earmark the funding for 
Lane Metro Partnership, they would dedicate it to economic development generally. That was correct. 
 
Mr. Duey said it would not be removed from the budget, but staff would not have the authority to 
spend it on Lane Metro Partnership at this time. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said he would hold off entering into a contract with Lane Metro Partnership until 
discussions had been complete. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said that was her intent. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WYLIE WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WOODROW TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2013-10.  THE MOTION PASSED WITH A 
VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 

 
4. Vacation of a Segment of Public Street Right-of-Way Between Marcola Road and Pierce Parkway. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 1 – AN ORDINANCE VACATING A 320-FOOT LONG BY 60-FOOT 
WIDE SEGMENT OF 31ST STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY, WHICH LIES SOUTH OF PIERCE 
PARKWAY AND NORTH OF MARCOLA ROAD (FIRST READING). 

 
Planner Andy Limbird presented the staff report on this item. A request for vacation of a segment of 
31st Street right-of-way had been received from Jeff Gaskill, O&S Contractors, owners of property at 
3093 Pierce Parkway.  The property owner was requesting vacation of the right-of-way to incorporate 
the area into their industrial site. 
 
The City Council was authorized by ORS Chapter 271.080 et seq. and SDC Article 5.20-110 to act on 
requests to vacate public rights-of-way.  The property owner of 3093 Pierce Parkway (Map 17-02-30-
23, Tax Lot 103) was requesting vacation of a 320-foot long segment of 31st Street right-of-way that 
abutted the east edge of their site.  The right-of-way was dedicated to Lane County in 1954 and would 
revert to the original parent properties upon vacation.  Unlike previous vacation actions in other areas 
of Springfield, in this instance the vacated right-of-way did not become a viable City-owned parcel 
that could be transferred, sold or developed on its own.  Staff advised that the vacation area did not 
appreciably increase the buildable area of the adjoining site due to multiple underground utilities and 
easements.  Therefore, it was the opinion of staff that the vacation application fee cost ($5,510) and 
the prospect of transferring a potential City maintenance liability to a local business operation 
exceeded the marginal value that could be attributed to this segment of unused and heavily 
encumbered right-of-way.   Upon vacation approximately 18,292 square feet (95%) of the right-of-way 
would accrue to the applicant’s property and the balance of the vacation area (approximately 931 
square feet or 5%) would revert to the Oregon Military Department site on the east side of 31st Street.   

Numerous public utilities were contained within or across the subject right-of-way.  Prior to 
conclusion of the vacation process and transfer of the vacated right-of-way to the abutting property 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 17, 2013 
Page 6 
 
owners, the applicant would be responsible for providing appropriate utility easements and/or licenses 
to accommodate the existing utilities within Vacation Area “A” as depicted on Exhibit A to the 
Ordinance.  Alternatively, the applicant would provide for an acceptable relocation of the affected 
utilities outside of the vacation area.  

The applicant’s diagram of the subject right-of-way depicted recently-installed fences that encroached 
outside the area subject to the vacation request, including within public right-of-way not subject to this 
vacation action.  These fencing encroachments would need to be corrected upon vacation of the 
subject portion of 31st Street.  Additionally, the applicant would need to consolidate the vacation area 
with their abutting parcel (Tax Lot 103) in order to create a single titled parcel. 

Staff recommended the City Council approve the vacation of public right-of-way, as depicted on 
Exhibit A to the vacation request, subject to the conditions outlined in the accompanying Staff Report. 
 
Mr. Limbird displayed maps showing the site and the proposed vacation area. 
 
Mayor Lundberg opened the public hearing. 
 
No one appeared to speak. 
 
Mayor Lundberg closed the public hearing. 
 
NO ACTION REQUESTED. FIRST READING ONLY. 

 
5. Proposed Sale of City Property. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2013-11 – A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
SELL TWO LOTS IN WEST GLENWOOD IN ACCORD WITH THE PURCHASE, SALE 
AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 
Community Development Manager John Tamulonis presented the staff report on this item.  The 
property owner of Tax Lot 700 (adjacent and east of these tax lots) would like to buy the two 
westernmost tax lots under City ownership (Tax Lots 100 & 200). SEDA purchased three parcels to 
begin the acquisition and development of a public storm water system in Glenwood. These 
westernmost two tax lots were currently under lease to Hamilton Construction through September 
2013 with a possible extension to mid-2014. Combining the three tax lots, the property owner 
proposed to build an 85-97-room hotel that must open before July 2015 and had plans to make a 
subsequent investment on Tax Lots 100 and 200 after Hamilton’s leases ended and the hotel was 
constructed. The Council Briefing Memorandum outlined the terms and conditions of the sale and the 
required development with details in Attachment 6 of the agenda packet. 
 
Mr. Tamulonis said the Purchase Agreement was included in the agenda packet. This agreement 
included a clawback clause should the property owner and developer of the hotel not proceed with the 
hotel by July 2014, or have it completed by July 2015. At that time, the property would either come 
back to the City or the additional cost of $90,000 would be paid to retain ownership of the parcel. The 
proposed development would provide approximately $85,000 in property taxes and additional 
transient room tax once completed. 
 
Mayor Lundberg opened the public hearing. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 17, 2013 
Page 7 
 
1. Rick Satre, 375 W 4th Avenue, Suite 201, Eugene, OR.  Mr. Satre said he was speaking on behalf 

of the purchaser of the two tax lots. The purchaser, Mr. Satre and the entire consultant team 
appreciated the amount of effort from City leadership, City Manager’s office, City Attorney’s 
office and the planning and development staff. Everyone had been terrific in moving this project 
forward. It was going to be a great addition to the Glenwood riverfront and the Franklin Boulevard 
entrance into Springfield. The sale of the two city-owned lots to that hotel made the project 
possible. 

 
Mayor Lundberg closed the public hearing. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WYLIE WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WOODROW TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2013-11.  THE MOTION PASSED WITH A 
VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 

1. Steve Moe, P.O. Box 847, Springfield, OR  Mr. Moe passed around some photos of the view 
of the Willamette River when driving over Franklin Boulevard into Eugene, and from Eugene 
into Springfield.  The new bike bridge that was built blocked that view. He distributed photos 
showing the same view, but the river was no longer visible. They seemed to have made the 
bike bridge rise about four or five feet higher than Franklin Boulevard. He knew there was 
nothing that could be done about the bike bridge, but he hoped that when Franklin Boulevard 
was redone, they considered raising the road bed so they could have the view again.  

 
COUNCIL RESPONSE 
 
Councilor Ralston clarified this was an issue because it took away the view. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE AND PETITIONS 
 
1. Correspondence from Planned Parenthood of Southern Oregon (PPSO) Regarding Stormwater 

Drainage Services (see attached staff response). 
 
Mayor Lundberg said there were staff recommendations regarding this topic. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said this issue came up when Council discussed the stormwater fees. Several Councilors 
expressed an interest in providing incentives for people that kept stormwater out of the stormwater 
system, and Planned Parenthood had pointed out in their letter that they did that on the entire property. 
Staff would bring this back to Council for discussion during a work session sometime after summer 
recess. 
 
Mayor Lundberg asked how they would be charged in the meantime. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi recommended PPSO be charged what would normally be charged. When the Council 
took this up later and made some changes, they could go retroactive and reimburse them. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WYLIE WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
WOODROW TO ACCEPT THE CORRESPONDENCE FOR FILING. THE MOTION 
PASSED WITH A VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 17, 2013 
Page 8 
 
 
BIDS 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
1. Councilor Woodrow said she was fortunate to help for the fifth time with the K-9 Competition 

held on Saturday, June 15. She helped with t-shirt and raffle sales which went to support the K-9 
Program. It was a popular event and there was standing room only. She also noted that Springfield 
swept the event winning 1st, 2nd and 3rd place in the competition. She was happy to be part of this 
event. 

 
2. Councilor Moore said she, Mayor Lundberg and Councilor Woodrow attended the Travel Lane 

County Banquet on Tuesday, June 11. The banquet celebrated some of the businesses and how 
they responded to visitors in our area.  

 
Councilor Moore also reported on the Human Services Commission (HSC). The HSC adopted a 
revised budget during today’s meeting. There was a letter from Tom McKee, Director for 
Willamette Family Buckley Center stating that the Sobering Services would be suspended at 
8:00am on July 1, 2013 pending any other funding that might come up at the last minute. The 
Council had discussed this issue many times and the closure of this service was a real blow to the 
community. 
 
Mayor Lundberg asked staff if there was additional information about this topic. 
 
Mr. Towery said the partners had been talking about this for several months. The last information 
he had was that the other partners were working through the budget process and tentatively would 
try to come up with the resources to continue the program. Those partners included Lane County, 
City of Eugene, City of Springfield, McKenzie Willamette Hospital, PeaceHealth and 
PacificSource Foundation. The information from Mr. McKee that Councilor Moore shared was 
new to him and had not been communicated to staff. He said he would do some follow-up 
tomorrow. The City of Springfield had indicated a willingness to continue the level of funding 
from FY13 as long as the other partners were coming along as well. He would keep the Council 
informed. 
 

3. Mayor Lundberg said she participated in the 2nd Friday Art Walk on June 14. Mayor Piercy joined 
her and they had a nice tour of a variety of businesses downtown. Every place was very popular 
and had music. This was the same group that took flashlights on the tour in the winter, so she let 
them know the City was working very hard on getting lighting in downtown so they wouldn’t 
need to use flashlights for the tour in the winter. That brought a big round of applause and cheers, 
which reiterated how popular getting lighting was in downtown. Niel Laudati took a great photo of 
the two Mayors next to the display of a bridge.  Miss Lane County, Miss Teen Lane County and 
Miss University of Oregon helped the mayors judge the flower displays. 

 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
June 17, 2013 
Page 9 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned 7:32 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder Amy Sowa 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
City Recorder 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 7/1/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Andy Limbird, DPW 
 Staff Phone No: Ext. 3784 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Encourage Economic Development 
and Revitalization through 
Community Partnerships 

 
ITEM TITLE: VACATION OF A SEGMENT OF PUBLIC STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY BETWEEN 

MARCOLA ROAD AND PIERCE PARKWAY. 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Conduct a second reading and adopt/not adopt the following ordinance:   
AN ORDINANCE VACATING A 320-FOOT LONG BY 60-FOOT WIDE SEGMENT OF 31ST 
STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY, WHICH LIES SOUTH OF PIERCE PARKWAY AND NORTH 
OF MARCOLA ROAD (SECOND READING). 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

A request for vacation of a segment of 31st Street right-of-way has been received from Jeff 
Gaskill, O&S Contractors, owners of property at 3093 Pierce Parkway.  The property owner is 
requesting vacation of the right-of-way to incorporate the area into their industrial site.   

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1:  Location Map 
Attachment 2:  Vacation Application 
Attachment 3:  Ordinance with Exhibits  

Exhibit A:  Map and Legal Description 
                         Exhibit B:  Staff Report and Recommendations                      

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The City Council is authorized by ORS Chapter 271.080 et seq. and SDC Article 5.20-110 to act 
on requests to vacate public rights-of-way.  The property owner of 3093 Pierce Parkway (Map 
17-02-30-23, Tax Lot 103) is requesting vacation of a 320-foot long segment of 31st Street right-
of-way that abuts the east edge of their site.  The City Council conducted a public hearing and 
gave first reading to the vacation ordinance at the regular meeting on June 17, 2013.  No one 
testified at the public hearing meeting.  Upon vacation approximately 18,292 square feet (95%) 
of the subject right-of-way would accrue to the applicant’s property and the balance of the 
vacation area (approximately 931 square feet or 5%) would revert to the Oregon Military 
Department site on the east side of 31st Street.   

Numerous public utilities are contained within or cross the subject right-of-way.  Prior to 
conclusion of the vacation process and transfer of the vacated right-of-way to the abutting 
property owners, the applicant shall be responsible for providing appropriate utility easements 
and/or licenses to accommodate the existing utilities within Vacation Area “A” as depicted on 
Exhibit A to the Ordinance.  Alternatively, the applicant shall provide for an acceptable 
relocation of the affected utilities outside of the vacation area.  

The applicant’s diagram of the subject right-of-way depicts recently-installed fences that 
encroach outside the area subject to the vacation request, including within public right-of-way 
not subject to this vacation action.  These fencing encroachments will need to be corrected upon 
vacation of the subject portion of 31st Street.  Additionally, the applicant will need to consolidate 
the vacation area with their abutting parcel (Tax Lot 103) in order to create a single titled parcel. 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends the City Council approve the vacation of public right-of-
way, as depicted on Exhibit A to the vacation request, by adopting the Vacation Ordinance and 
subject to the conditions outlined in the accompanying Staff Report. 

 



LO
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 V
AC

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
31

ST
 S

TR
EE

T 
R

IG
H

T-
O

F-
W

AY
 

W
IT

H
IN

 A
SS

ES
SO

R
’S

 M
AP

 1
7-

02
-3

0-
23

 
 

 
 

  

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Va

ca
tio

n 
Ar

ea
 

M
ar

co
la

 R
oa

d 

O
re

go
n 

N
at

io
na

l 
G

ua
rd

 A
rm

or
y 

Pi
er

ce
 P

ar
kw

ay
 

28
th

 Street 

A
pp

lic
an

t’s
 

P
ro

pe
rty

 
(T

L 
10

3)
 

 

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 1



Attachment 2, Page 1 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 2 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 3 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 4 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 5 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 6 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 7 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 8 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 9 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 10 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 11 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 12 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 13 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 14 of 15



Attachment 2, Page 15 of 15



Attachment 3, Page 1 of 11



Attachment 3, Page 2 of 11



Exhibit A , Page 1 of 2

Attachment 3, Page 3 of 11



Exhibit A , Page 2 of 2

Attachment 3, Page 4 of 11



TYPE IV – VACATION OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY     
STAFF REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
File Name:  31st St. Right-of-Way Vacation  
 
Applicant:  Jeff Gaskill, O&S Contractors 
 
Case Number:  TYP413-00002 
 
Proposal Location:  Segment of 31st Street 
between Marcola Road and Pierce Parkway 
  
Adjacent Zoning:   
Light Medium Industrial (LMI) 
 
Plan Designation: Light Medium Industrial  
 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan:   
Metro Plan 
 
Application Submittal Date:  May 2, 2013 
 
Associated Applications:  TYP112-00017 – Minimum Development Standards (Major) for Adjacent 
Site Development at 3093 Pierce Parkway 
 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD’S DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE 
 
POSITION REVIEW OF NAME PHONE 
Project Manager Planning Andy Limbird 541-726-3784 
Transportation Planning Engineer Transportation Michael Liebler 541-736-1034 
Public Works Civil Engineer Streets and Utilities Clayton McEachern 541-736-1036 
Deputy Fire Marshal Fire and Life Safety Gilbert Gordon 541-726-2293 
Building Official Building David Bowlsby 541-736-1029 
 
APPLICANT’S DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM 
 
POSITION NAME PHONE MAILING ADDRESS 
Applicant  Jeff Gaskill 

O&S Contractors 
541-747-9715 3093 Pierce Parkway 

Springfield, OR  97477 
Applicant’s 
Representative 

Tony Favreau, PE 
Favreau Group Engineering 

541-683-7048 3750 Norwich Avenue 
Eugene, OR  97408 

 
 
 
 

Proposed  
Vacation  

Area 

Marcola Road 

Pierce Parkway 

28
th

 S
tr

ee
t 

Oregon 
National Guard 

Armory 

Exhibit B, Page 1 of 7

Attachment 3, Page 5 of 11



Review Process (SDC 5.20-115):  The subject vacation request is being reviewed under Type IV procedures, 
without Planning Commission consideration.   
 
Vacation Initiation and Application Submittal (SDC 5.20-120):  In accordance with SDC 5.20-120 and ORS 
270.080, a vacation application for public rights-of-way may be initiated by a property owner.  
 
Finding:   The property owner of an abutting parcel (municipally addressed as 3093 Pierce Parkway; Assessor’s 
Map 17-02-30-23, Tax Lot 103) has filed an application requesting vacation of a segment of the 31st Street 
public right-of-way (Attachment 4). 
 
Conclusion:  The application requirements in SDC 5.20-120 have been met. 
   
Site Information:  The public right-of-way requested for vacation is a 320-foot long by 60-foot wide segment 
of 31st Street lying north of Marcola Road and south of Pierce Parkway.  Because of an oblique intersection 
with Marcola Road and the proximity of a railroad spur line, 31st Street was realigned westward to an 
intersection with 28th Street in the 1970s.  The right-of-way subject to the vacation request is gated and no 
longer used for public travel, and is deemed surplus to the City’s needs.  The abutting property owner to the 
west (Tax Lot 103) is requesting vacation of the right-of-way in order to incorporate the area into their recently-
developed industrial site.  Staff has determined that because of the original mechanism for dedication of 31st 
Street, approximately 95% of the vacation area would accrue to the applicant’s property upon vacation.   
 
Notice Requirements (SDC 5.20-125):  Consistent with SDC 5.20-125, notice was provided as follows: 
 

Mailed Notice.  Notice of the annexation application was mailed May 28, 2013, which is 20 days prior to 
the public hearing date, to the affected property owner(s); owners and occupants of properties located 
within 300 feet of the perimeter of the affected territory; affected neighborhood groups or community 
organizations officially recognized by the city that includes the affected territory; and affected special 
districts and all other public utility providers. 
 
Newspaper Notice.  Notice of the June 17, 2013 public hearing was published in The Register-Guard on 
June 3 and 10, 2013. 
 
Posted Notice.  Notice of the June 17, 2013 public hearing was posted in five public places in the City:  at 
the northern and southern ends of the 31st Street right-of-way proposed for vacation; at Springfield City 
Hall and in the Development & Public Works office; and on the City of Springfield website. 

 
Conclusion:  Notice of the public hearing was provided consistent with SDC 5.7-130.   
 
Recommendation to City Council (SDC 5.7-135):  The Development & Public Works Director shall forward 
a written recommendation on the vacation application to the City Council based on the approval criteria 
specified in Section 5.20-130, which are provided as follows with the SDC requirements, findings, and 
conclusions.  The Director’s recommendation follows SDC 5.20-130, Criteria. 
 
Criteria (SDC 5.20-130):  The application may be approved only if the City Council finds that the proposal 
conforms to the following criteria: 
 
A. For the Vacation of public utility easements, the Director shall approve, approve with conditions, or 

deny the application. The application will be approved if the Vacation is found to be consistent with 
the following criteria: 

  

Exhibit B, Page 2 of 7

Attachment 3, Page 6 of 11



1. There are no present or future services, facilities, or utilities deemed to be necessary by a utility 
provider and the easement is not necessary; or 

  
Applicant’s Narrative:  “There is a natural gas line in the existing right-of-way that services the 
property to the east.  A seven-foot public utility easement, centered over the existing natural gas line, 
shall be dedicated as a part of the proposed right-of-way vacation.  The existing right-of-way is 
physically blocked off by fencing and will not be needed for any future access or utilities”.  
 
Staff Finding:  Staff advises that recent responses from utility providers has confirmed that more 
utilities than just the acknowledged natural gas line are present within or cross the right-of-way 
proposed for vacation.  According to the utility providers, the subject right-of-way contains facilities 
owned and operated by the City, SUB Water, SUB Electric, EWEB, NW Natural Gas and CenturyLink.  
In this case, the provision of appropriate public easements will be required to accommodate the existing 
utilities.   The proposal meets this sub-element of the criterion. 

 
2. If the utility provider deems the easement to be necessary, public services, facilities, or utilities 

can be extended in an orderly and efficient manner in an alternate location. 
 
Applicant’s Narrative:  “There are no utilities that need the existing right-of-way for current or future 
use other than that described above.” 
 
Staff Finding:  As stated above, access to the right-of-way will need to be maintained for current 
utilities.  This access can be afforded through appropriate public easements and licenses for the affected 
right-of-way (see Criterion B3 and Condition 1 below).  Because the proposed vacation is for public 
right-of-way and not for a public utility easement, this sub-element of the criterion is not applicable.   

 
Conclusion:  This proposal meets Criterion A.  

 
B. Where the proposed Vacation of public rights-of-way, other City property, or Partition or 

Subdivision Plats is reviewed under Type IV procedure, the City Council shall approve, approve with 
conditions, or deny the Vacation application. The application will be approved if the Vacation is 
found to be consistent with the following approval criteria. 

  
1. The Vacation shall be in conformance with the Metro Plan, TransPlan, the Conceptual Local 

Street Map and adopted Functional Plans, and applicable Refinement Plan diagram, Plan District 
map, or Conceptual Development Plan; 

 
Applicant’s Narrative:  “This portion of right-of-way is not needed as a part of the above mentioned 
plans.” 

 
Staff Finding:  The subject right-of-way is depicted on the City’s Conceptual Local Street Map as a 
truncated segment of 31st Street extending south of Pierce Parkway, but it is not shown as a necessary 
or planned connector street.  There are no adopted Refinement or Conceptual Development Plans for 
the subject area.  Because 31st Street was realigned more than 30 years ago, the residual segment of 31st 
Street right-of-way has been gated and not used for public travel.  The road segment functioned as a 
driveway for a building on the adjacent property (Tax Lot 103) until it was demolished during site 
redevelopment in 2012.  The proposal meets this sub-element of the criterion.  

 

Exhibit B, Page 3 of 7

Attachment 3, Page 7 of 11



 2. The Vacation shall not conflict with the provisions of Springfield Municipal Code, 1997; and this 
Code, including but not limited to, street connectivity standards and block lengths; and 

  
Applicant’s Narrative:  “There are no existing or future parcels that take or will take their access from 
this portion of the right-of-way.” 

 
Staff Finding:  The proposed vacation will not affect street connectivity or block length, and does not 
conflict with provisions of the City’s Municipal Code.  The proposal meets this sub-element of the 
criterion.    

 
3. There shall be no negative effects on access, traffic circulation, emergency service protection or 

any other benefit derived from the public right-of-way, publicly owned land or Partition or 
Subdivision Plat. 

 
Applicant’s Narrative:  “There are no existing or future parcels that take or will take their access from 
this portion of the right-of-way, so, there are no parcels that will need this portion of the right-of-way 
for emergency service.” 
 
Staff Finding:  The applicant has provided for emergency access to the property and vacation area by 
installing a keyed gate that can be operated by Emergency and City Operations crews.  Because there 
are multiple known utilities within the right-of-way proposed for vacation, provision will need to be 
made for maintenance access to existing equipment and buried lines.  Staff recommends that the 
applicant make necessary arrangements for utility easements satisfactory to the affected utility 
providers, and provide evidence the easements have been recorded prior to the vacated right-of-way 
transferring to the applicant. 
 
Staff Finding:  Staff observes the applicant has installed fencing on the north and south sides of the 
right-of-way proposed for vacation.  The fencing encroaches beyond the area contained in the vacation 
action and occupies portions of public right-of-way that will accrue to the Oregon National Guard site 
or remain in City ownership and control.  To ensure the fences represent the true dimensions of the  
property combined with the vacated  right-of-way,  the applicant must  relocate the subject fencing onto 
or inside the delineated property line of the consolidated parcels (ie. Tax Lot 103 and vacated right-of-
way).    

 
 Recommended Conditions of Approval: 

 
1. Prior to transfer of the vacated right-of-way to the property owner of Tax Lot 103, the 

applicant shall execute and record utility easement(s) satisfactory to all affected utility 
operators with facilities within the subject vacation area, including  the City of Springfield, 
Springfield Utility Board, Eugene Water & Electric Board, NW Natural Gas and 
CenturyLink, and provide copies of these easements  to the City.   
 

2. Prior to transfer of the vacated right-of-way to the property owner of Tax Lot 103, the 
applicant shall satisfactorily address existing fence encroachments outside the northeast and 
south edges of the vacated right-of-way by installing the fencing on or inside the ultimate 
property line for consolidated Tax Lot 103.   

 
Conclusion:  As conditioned herein, this proposal meets Criterion B. 

  

Exhibit B, Page 4 of 7

Attachment 3, Page 8 of 11



C. Notwithstanding the provisions of Subsection B., above where the land affected by the proposed 
Vacation of public right-of-way, other public land as specified in ORS 271.080, or public easement 
will remain in public ownership and will continue to be used for a public purpose, the request shall 
be reviewed under the Type IV procedure.  The City Council may approve the Vacation application 
if it is found to be consistent with the following criteria: 

  
1. The Vacation was initiated by the City Council pursuant to ORS 271.130(1); 
  

Applicant’s Narrative:  “The City Council will hear the proposal during the public hearing.” 
 
Staff Finding:  The vacation action was initiated by an adjacent property owner and not by the City 
Council.  The City Council will act on the vacation request in accordance with provisions of ORS 
271.080 and Section 5.20-115.B of the City’s Development Code.  Therefore, this sub-element of the 
criterion is not applicable.  

 
2. Notice has been given pursuant to ORS 271.110(1); 
 

Applicant’s Narrative:  “Proper notice will be sent out by the City.” 
   

Staff Finding:  Notice of the public hearing for vacation of the subject right-of-way has been provided 
in accordance with ORS 271.110(1) and Section 5.20-125 of the City’s Development Code.  Therefore, 
the proposal meets this sub-element of the criterion. 

 
3. Approval of the vacation would be consistent with provision of safe, convenient and reasonably 

direct routes for cyclists, pedestrians and vehicles as provided in OAR 660-012-00045(3); 
 

Applicant’s Narrative:  “Since this right-of-way only services the applicant, the general public will not 
be affected.” 

  
 Staff Finding:  The segment of right-of-way proposed for vacation has been intentionally gated and 

closed to public travel, and therefore does not provide a connectivity function for vehicles, cyclists and 
pedestrians.  Vehicle, pedestrian and bicycle connectivity is not necessary or desirable at the subject 
location because of its oblique intersection with Marcola Road and the proximity of a railroad spur line.  
The street was realigned west of the subject right-of-way in order to provide separation from the 
railroad track crossing and to create a suitable intersection with Marcola Road.  The realigned section 
of 28th/31st Street provides a preferred alternate route because it has been developed as a three-lane 
major collector street with setback pedestrian sidewalks and dedicated bicycle lanes.  Therefore, the 
proposal meets this sub-element of the criterion. 

 
4. Whether a greater public benefit would be obtained from the vacation than from retaining the 

right of way in its present status; and 
 

Applicant’s Narrative:  “Since this right-of-way only services the applicant, the general public will not 
be affected.” 

  
 Staff Finding:  The segment of right-of-way is City owned and maintained, and because it is not 

actively used for public travel it constitutes a potential maintenance liability.   Incorporation of this land 

Exhibit B, Page 5 of 7

Attachment 3, Page 9 of 11



into the adjoining industrial site not only eliminates this potential liability, but also enables the land to 
be used to support the primary industrial activity on the property.   

  
 Staff Finding:  In accordance with Section 3.204 of the City’s Municipal Code, “the City shall require 

the payment to the City by the applicant of an amount equal to the assessment of special benefit 
resulting or inuring to the abutting property that results from the vacation and disposition of property to 
the benefited property owners.”  Staff has researched the original bargain and sale deed for 31st Street 
and determined that Lane County purchased the road alignment from the Pierce family in 1954 for the 
sum of $10.  This is a very modest amount, even when translated to 2013 dollars, so the original public 
purchase cost for the road essentially constitutes a “donation” and only a portion of the originally 
dedicated road right-of-way is being proposed for vacation at this time.  Because the right-of-way is 
encumbered by underground utilities and provides limited additional benefit to the adjoining property 
owner (primarily for additional parking, vehicle maneuvering, and increased site security) staff is of the 
view that its marginal value does not exceed the applicant’s cost for vacation application fees and 
assumption of maintenance responsibility.  Therefore, the assessment of benefit is not applicable to this 
vacation request. 

 
 Staff Finding:  Two remnant stubs of 31st Street will remain at the north and south ends of the right-of-

way requested for vacation.  The northern end will be used for emergency vehicle turnaround and 
access to the existing fire hydrant at the southeast corner of 31st Street at Pierce Parkway.  The southern 
stub of right-of-way will remain in City ownership at this time.  Because this segment of right-of-way 
abuts property owned by the Pipefitters Union (and would accrue to their parcel), this organization 
would need to actively participate in the vacation process.  The applicant was successful in obtaining a 
concurrence to the subject vacation from a Union representative, but they did not respond to the 
applicant’s request for participation in the vacation action.  Therefore, the proposal meets this sub-
element of the criterion.    
 

5. Whether provisions have been made to ensure that the vacated property will remain in public 
ownership. 

 
Applicant’s Narrative:  “The vacated property will be in private ownership and maintained by the 
applicant.” 

 
Staff Finding:  As noted above, staff advises that the segment of right-of-way is no longer used for 
public travel and presents a potential maintenance liability to the City.  Staff recommends disposing of 
the remnant right-of-way because there is no compelling reason to retain the subject property in public 
ownership.  Disposition of the right-of-way is predicated on provision of suitable easements and 
licenses for existing utilities within the vacation area (Condition 1).  Therefore, the proposal meets this 
sub-element of the criterion. 

 
Conclusion:  This proposal meets Criterion C. 

 
City Council Decision (SDC 5.20-135):  City Council approval of the vacation application is done by adoption 
of a Vacation Ordinance.  In accordance with SDC 5.20-135, the City Council may attach conditions as may be 
reasonably necessary to allow the Vacation to be granted, including but not limited to provision of easements 
for existing utilities. 
 
Finding:  On June 17, 2013, the City Council will conduct a Public Hearing and give first reading of the 
Vacation Ordinance.  Based on the staff analysis and recommendations, and on testimony provided at the Public 

Exhibit B, Page 6 of 7

Attachment 3, Page 10 of 11



Hearing, the City Council may direct a second reading of the Ordinance to occur on or after July 1, 2013.  The 
Council may order modifications to this Ordinance in consideration of evidence in the record.  The Director 
recommends approval of the vacation application subject to the conditions described in the staff report and as 
summarized below.  
 
SUMMARY OF STAFF RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 
1. Prior to transfer of the vacated right-of-way to the property owner of Tax Lot 103, the applicant 

shall execute and record utility easements satisfactory to all affected utility providers within the 
subject vacation area, including  the City of Springfield, Springfield Utility Board, Eugene Water & 
Electric Board, NW Natural Gas and CenturyLink, and provide copies of these easement  to the City.   

 
2. Prior to transfer of the vacated right-of-way to the property owner of Tax Lot 103, the applicant 

shall satisfactorily address existing fence encroachments outside the northeast and south edges of the 
vacated right-of-way by installing the fencing on or inside the ultimate property line for consolidated 
Tax Lot 103, and provide evidence thereof to the City.   

 
 

Exhibit B, Page 7 of 7

Attachment 3, Page 11 of 11



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 7/1/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Sophia Seban – DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 726-2295 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE: LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION FOR WAL-MART STORES, INC, DBA: 

Walmart #4178.   
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Endorsement of OLCC Liquor License Application for Walmart #4178, a Super 
Store style location, located at 2730 Gateway Street, Springfield, Oregon 97477. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The owner of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc has requested the City Council to endorse its 
OLCC Liquor License Application. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1.  OLCC Liquor License Application 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The license endorsement for Wal-Mart Stores, INC, DBA: Walmart #4178 is for a 
New Outlet with Off-Premises Sales and applying as a Corporation.  The new 
license application has been reviewed and approved by the appropriate City 
Departments. 
 

 







 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 7/1/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Sophia Seban – DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 726-2295 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE: LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION FOR LAVELLE VINEYARDS, INC, DBA: 

LAVELLE VINEYARDS. 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Endorsement of OLCC Liquor License Application for LaVelle Vineyards, an 
entertainment style location, located at 400 International Way, Suite 130, 
Springfield, Oregon 97477. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The owners of LaVelle Vineyards, INC, has requested the City Council to endorse 
its OLCC Liquor License Application. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1.  OLCC Liquor License Application 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The license endorsement for LaVelle Vineyards, INC, DBA: LaVelle Vineyards is 
for a New Outlet as a Winery and applying as a Corporation.  The new license 
application has been reviewed and approved by the appropriate City Departments. 
 

 







 
 
 
 

 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 7/1/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Randy Groves 
 Staff Phone No: 726-2292 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Financially Responsible 
and Stable Government 
Services 

 
ITEM TITLE:  

APPROVE A CONTRACT EXTENSION FOR FIRE APPARATUS 
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR WITH OREGON APPARATUS REPAIR, INC. 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

 
By motion: 

• Authorize City Manager to sign a contract extension with Oregon 
Apparatus Repair, Inc. for maintenance and repair of fire apparatus. 

 
ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Springfield Fire & Life Safety is requesting to extend the current contract for 
apparatus maintenance and repair services with Oregon Apparatus Repair, Inc. 
for one year.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Second Amendment to Oregon Apparatus Repair, Inc. Contract 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

Fire & Life Safety selected Oregon Apparatus Repair, Inc. through an RFP 
process in 2011 to provide ongoing services for maintenance and repair of fire 
apparatus.  
 
SFLS spends over $200,000 per year on maintenance, repair, and inspection of 
the apparatus fleet to ensure the safety of the firefighters and the public. Oregon 
Apparatus Repair, Inc. has over 30 years experience in fire apparatus 
maintenance and has provided a variety of services to Springfield Fire over the 
years. 
 
This is the second and final proposed contract extension and will run through 
June 30, 2014. 
 
 

 



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 1 of 82



ATTACHMENT 1

AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 2 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 3 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 4 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 5 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 6 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 7 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 8 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 9 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 10 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 11 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 12 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 13 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 14 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 15 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 16 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 17 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 18 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 19 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 20 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 21 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 22 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 23 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 24 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 25 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 26 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 27 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 28 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 29 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 30 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 31 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 32 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 33 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 34 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 35 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 36 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 37 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 38 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 39 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 40 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 41 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 42 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 43 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 44 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 45 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 46 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 47 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 48 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 49 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 50 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 51 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 52 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 53 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 54 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 55 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 56 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 57 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 58 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 59 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 60 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 61 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 62 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 63 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 64 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 65 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 66 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 67 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 68 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 69 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 70 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 71 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 72 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 73 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 74 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 75 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 76 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 77 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 78 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 79 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 80 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 81 of 82



AIS ATTACHMENT 1 - Page 82 of 82



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 7/1/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Brian Evanoff 
 Staff Phone No: 736-1019 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Provide Financially 
Responsible and 
Innovative Government 
Services 

 
ITEM TITLE:  FIREMED ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CONTRACT WITH LIFE FLIGHT 

NETWORK, LLC  
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

By motion: 
• Authorize City Manager to sign a revenue contract with Life Flight 

Network, LLC for FireMed administrative services. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Eugene Fire & EMS and Lane Rural Fire/Rescue are partners with Springfield 
Fire & Life Safety, and Life Flight Network, LLC for marketing and advertising 
the FireMed program. Life Flight is the program’s air ambulance provider. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Life Flight Contract 
 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The FireMed program partnered with Life Flight Network, LLC beginning in 
May 2008 for provision of air ambulance services to FireMed members choosing 
the FireMed Plus coverage.  The original contract has expired. This is a new 
agreement to continue to provide FireMed marketing, advertising, and 
administrative services for Life Flight.  
 
FireMed accomplishes its’ large marketing campaign by pooling resources from 
FireMed agencies, clients, and Life Flight. Springfield provides program 
administration and coordination, marketing, customer support, and data entry for 
the City of Eugene, Lane Rural Fire/Rescue, and Life Flight Network.  
 
Life Flight Network, LLC pays Springfield a proportionate share of advertising 
and marketing expenses for FireMed to advertise and process Life Flight 
memberships as part of our annual membership campaign. FY13 Life Flight 
contribution was $99,397. For an additional $40 fee – the FireMed Plus option – 
Life Flight provides air medical coverage for approximately 13,710 area 
households.  Life Flight membership costs have increased for FY14 to $45 per 
household. Life Flight memberships have increased each year, with FY14 
numbers expected to see a small increase. 
 
 
 
 

 



AIS- ATTACHMENT 1



AIS- ATTACHMENT 1



AIS- ATTACHMENT 1



AIS- ATTACHMENT 1



AIS- ATTACHMENT 1



AIS- ATTACHMENT 1



AIS- ATTACHMENT 1



AIS- ATTACHMENT 1



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 7/1/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Jeff Paschall, DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-1674 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Maintain and Improve 
Infrastructure and 
Facilities 

 
ITEM TITLE: P41020 CHANNEL 6 STORMWATER MASTER PLAN CONSULTANT 

SELECTION AND CONTRACT AWARD. 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Approve/Not Approve a motion to waive the requirement for newspaper 
advertisement of requests for proposal (RFP) exceeding $100,000 and allow the 
City Manager to award and sign the P41020 Channel 6 Stormwater Master Plan 
contract upon completion of contract negotiations.  
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The Development and Public Works Department seeks Council approval to waive 
the requirement for newspaper advertisement of requests for proposals exceeding 
$100,000 and allow the City Manager to award Contract #956 to the selected 
consultant through the qualifications based selection (QBS) process, AMEC 
Environmental & Infrastructure Inc., for the completion of the for P41020 Channel 
6 Stormwater Master Plan.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The Channel 6 Stormwater Master Plan project is identified in the Council adopted 
Capital Improvement Program.  Channel 6 improvements are intended to support 
the fulfillment of Springfield’s obligations to improve the quality of urban 
stormwater under the Clean Water Act, Endangered Species Act, Safe Drinking 
Water Act, and the City’s NPDES stormwater discharge permit. Prior plans have 
provided the basis for needing construction of stormwater quality and conveyance 
facilities. The purpose of the Channel 6 Stormwater Master Plan is to initiate 
implementation of the Channel 6 improvements identified in these prior plans. A 
rigorous analysis of the channel’s capacity and functions will help inform and 
prioritize the design and construction of capital projects.  
 
The Development and Public Works Department issued a request for proposals on 
the City’s webpage and sent the request directly to several consultants, anticipating 
the completion of the project would total less than $100,000.  One proposal was 
received by the Finance Department in May, and in initial negotiations, it is 
apparent the contract will exceed the $100,000 threshold.  Staff is continuing to 
negotiate with AMEC Environmental & Infrastructure Inc.  The Development and 
Public Works Department is requesting the City Council waive the requirement for 
newspaper advertisement of request for proposals exceeding $100,000 and allow 
the City Manager to award Contract #956 to the selected consultant through the 
qualifications based selection (QBS) process.   
 
Staff recommends award of the contract to AMEC Environmental & Infrastructure 
Inc. upon completion of contract negotiations.  Sufficient funds are budgeted in 
fund accounts; 425-62243-850220 and 440-62243-850220.  
 

 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 7/1/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Greta Utecht,  

Human Resources 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3787 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Provide Financially 
Responsible and 
Innovative Government 
Services 

 
ITEM TITLE: CITY MANAGER COMPENSATION 

 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Approve Cost of Living Increase of 2.2% for City Manager Gino Grimaldi, 
effective May 6, 2013. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Following the Council’s positive review of City Manager Gino Grimaldi’s 
performance in May 2013, the Council held a work session to determine what, if 
any, form of compensation increase should be considered for him.  The Council 
directed staff to prepare an agenda item that for the July 1, 2013 regular session that 
recommends a 2.2% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) for the City Manager, 
effective retroactive to his performance review date of May 6, 2013.   
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Council Briefing Memorandum of May 16, 2013 addressed to the Finance & 
Judiciary Committee 

2. City Manager Compensation Survey 2013  
3. City Manager Compensation Survey 2013 with Proposed COLA 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The attached Council Briefing Memorandum describes how four different cost of 
living adjustment indices are to be averaged to come up with a percentage that may 
be used to determine what, if any, changes might be made to the City Manager’s 
compensation package. The percentage average is 2.2%, which was the basis of 
discussion.   
The Council considered two options:  1) Divide the 2.2 in half and apply 1.1% as a 
retroactive COLA to November 2012* and give the remaining 1.1% as lump sum, 
one-time payout; or 2) Apply the full 2.2% as a COLA effective May 6, 2013, the 
date his performance review was actually completed.  Option 1 would cost the City 
an additional $3,000 for FY13 above the City Manager’s current compensation and 
an additional $1846 each year thereafter; option 2 would cost the City an additional 
$615 for FY13 and an additional $3,692 for each full year beginning July 1, 2013.  
The Committee asked about what changes were being made to other non-
represented employee compensation packages, and staff reported that an additional 
$250 will be deposited in the non-union employees’ Health Reimbursement 
Accounts (HRA) effective July 1, 2013, for this year only.  Because of IRS rules 
regarding HRA accounts, that same amount must be given to the City Manager as 
well.   
*Mr. Grimaldi’s regular annual review date is November 17, but this year it was 
delayed due to use of an external performance evaluation survey tool administered 
by the International City/County Management Association 

 



 

 Attachment 1 
 Page 1 of 1 
 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: 5/16/2013  

To: Finance & Judiciary Committee COUNCIL 

From: Greta Utecht, Human Resources Director BRIEFING 

Subject: City Manager Compensation MEMORANDUM 

ISSUE:  As a result of the Council’s May 6, 2013 highly favorable performance review of the 
City Manager, Council has directed staff to convene the Finance & Judiciary Committee in order 
to review Gino Grimaldi’s compensation.   

COUNCIL GOALS/ 
MANDATE: 
Provide Financially Responsible and Innovative Government Services 
Prior to 2012 when Mr. Grimaldi’s contract was changed, his salary was indexed to increases 
received by other employees.  By removing that link, the Council is able to evaluate the City 
Manager’s compensation package independently and not be influenced by what has been 
bargained or agreed to for other employees. 

BACKGROUND:   According to Gino Grimaldi’s employment contract, each February the 
City’s Human Resources Department will average the percentages from four different index 
sources to determine what, if any, amount of salary or cost of living adjustment to recommend to 
the City Council.   
The four indices that will be averaged are:  The CPI-W index for Portland-Salem; the cost of 
living index for Social Security benefits, the national salary index for public administrators and 
the Western Region officer/exempt executive index.  The following table lists those indices, and 
the overall average. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attached is also the most recent compensation survey of other City Managers in similar sized 
Oregon cities. Despite the fact that his salary has not been adjusted since 2008, it remains well 
within the market. 

Portland-Salem CPI-W for 2012 1.8 

Social Security Cost of Living Adjustment 2012 1.7 

Public Administrators National Index 2012 2.2 

Western & Oregon Officers/Executives 3.1 

Average: 2.2% 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends that the Finance & Judiciary Committee 
review the attached information, as well as considering the very high review Mr. Grimaldi 
received earlier this month.  If the committee believes that a compensation adjustment is 
warranted, staff recommends that a one-time, lump sum bonus be forwarded to the Council for 
consideration.. 

 



CITY MANAGER
 COMPENSATION SURVEY 2013 (6/24/2013)

Attachment 2
Page 1 of 1

Population Salary as 
of 5/2013

Deferred 
Comp

Auto/IT 
Stipend Other

 
PERS 
Pickup TOTAL

Albany 50,710 $127,956 $12,796 $4,320 $7,677 $152,749 No salary increase in 2011, $300/month car $60/month 
cell, 10% to deferred comp, 6% PERS

Bend 77,455 $155,298 $4,560 $9,318 $169,176

The City covers the deductible, $2000/individual 
$4000/family. If deductible not met, unused amount 
deposited in VEBA. $300 per/month car allowance $80 
per/month cell phone: severance inc to 9 mths with 9 
mths COBRA

Corvallis 55,055 $140,004 $5,000 $145,004

Eugene 158,335 $182,561 $14,000 $6,480 $7,022 $11,342 $221,405 $500 /month car allowance  $40 /month cell phone; 
Other= ability to cash out 2 wks vacation

Grants Pass 34,740 $118,000 $6,600 $7,080 $131,680 VEBA - if chosen, $234/mo

Gresham 105,970 $136,944 $6,000 $1,368 $8,217 $152,529 Waived VEBA - gets 1% of annual salary ($114/month) 
as an additional allowance

Hillsboro 92,550 $164,875 $11,760 $4,500 $181,135

$375 /month car allowance. VEBA is 2% of base salary.  
Deferred Comp contribution instead of PERS.  Medical is 
Kaiser composite rates. 10 paid days of Administrative 
leave + 2 personal days to be used as manager deems 
appropriate during the calendar year 

Oregon City 32,211 $163,800 $5,733 $1,250 $9,903 $180,686
Salary linked to other depaartment director COLAs & has 
merit pay component. Def comp = 3.5% w/ EE match. 
Full cost of smart phone & monthly svc.

Lake Oswego 36,770 $180,000 $10 $180,010 Data for interim- later changed upon Council vote. 
$10/Cell phone per month. $15k/mo

Medford 75,545 $145,008 $5,580 $8,700 $159,288
Sick leave above 960 hrs contributed at 50% to HRA-
VEBA acct. Severance  provides one month of salary for 
each year of service, up to 6 months

Tigard 48,695 $134,030 $6,702 $22,445 $163,177
No PERS:  City contributes 11% of salary (14,743/year), 
employee contributes $0.  $1000 allowance provided for 
purchase of addit life ins or long term care or both

Springfield** 59,840 $147,110 $5,884 $5,100 $5,658 $9,472 $173,225
Includes $1300 tech stipend, $4800 mileage and $5658 
for 80 hrs floating holiday that can be sold or used as 
vacation time each year.  Does not accrue.

Average $149,861 $9,332 $4,911 $7,711 $8,891 $166,985

Median $145,008 $9,231 $5,070 $4,195 $8,700 $163,177

**Springfield City's Manager has received total of 3% increase since 5/1/2006, while CPI_W Portland-Salem 
has increased by 16.5% in same period. Last increase was 7/1/2008. CPI-W Portland increase since 7/1/2008 
= 9.6%.



City Manager Compensation Survey (7/1/2013)

Attachment 3
Page 1 of 1

Population Salary as 
of 5/2013

Deferred 
Comp

Auto/IT 
Stipend Other

 
PERS 
Pickup TOTAL

Albany 50,710 $127,956 $12,796 $4,320 $7,677 $152,749 No salary increase in 2011, $300/month car $60/month 
cell, 10% to deferred comp, 6% PERS

Bend 77,455 $155,298 $4,560 $9,318 $169,176

The City covers the deductible, $2000/individual 
$4000/family. If deductible not met, unused amount 
deposited in VEBA. $300 per/month car allowance $80 
per/month cell phone: severance inc to 9 mths with 9 
mths COBRA

Corvallis 55,055 $140,004 $5,000 $145,004

Eugene 158,335 $182,561 $14,000 $6,480 $7,022 $11,342 $221,405 $500 /month car allowance  $40 /month cell phone; 
Other= ability to cash out 2 wks vacation

Grants Pass 34,740 $118,000 $6,600 $7,080 $131,680 VEBA - if chosen, $234/mo

Gresham 105,970 $136,944 $6,000 $1,368 $8,217 $152,529 Waived VEBA - gets 1% of annual salary ($114/month) 
as an additional allowance

Hillsboro 92,550 $164,875 $11,760 $4,500 $181,135

$375 /month car allowance. VEBA is 2% of base salary.  
Deferred Comp contribution instead of PERS.  Medical is 
Kaiser composite rates. 10 paid days of Administrative 
leave + 2 personal days to be used as manager deems 
appropriate during the calendar year 

Oregon City 32,211 $163,800 $5,733 $1,250 $9,903 $180,686
Salary linked to other depaartment director COLAs & has 
merit pay component. Def comp = 3.5% w/ EE match. 
Full cost of smart phone & monthly svc.

Lake Oswego 36,770 $180,000 $10 $180,010 Data for interim- later changed upon Council vote. 
$10/Cell phone per month. $15k/mo

Medford 75,545 $145,008 $5,580 $8,700 $159,288
Sick leave above 960 hrs contributed at 50% to HRA-
VEBA acct. Severance  provides one month of salary for 
each year of service, up to 6 months

Tigard 48,695 $134,030 $6,702 $22,445 $163,177
No PERS:  City contributes 11% of salary (14,743/year), 
employee contributes $0.  $1000 allowance provided for 
purchase of addit life ins or long term care or both

Springfield** 59,840 $150,346 $6,014 $5,100 $5,783 $9,674 $176,917
Includes $1300 tech stipend, $4800 mileage and $5658 
for 80 hrs floating holiday that can be sold or used as 
vacation time each year.  Does not accrue.

Average $149,861 $9,332 $4,911 $7,711 $8,891 $166,985

Median $145,008 $9,231 $5,070 $4,195 $8,700 $163,177

**Springfield City's Manager received 3% COLA 7/1/2008 and 2.2% COLA effective 5/6/2013. IT Stipend of 
$1300 in 2012, Def Comp changed from flat amt to 4% in 2012, 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 7/1/2013 
 Meeting Type: Work Session/Reg. Mtg 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Michael Harman/Police 
 Staff Phone No: 726-3729 
 Estimated Time: 30 Minutes/05 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Preserve Hometown 
Feel, Livability, and 
Environmental Quality 

 
ITEM TITLE: COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR LOW COST SPAY AND NEUTER 

SERVICES FOR CAT OWNERS 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Work Session:  Discuss the next steps available to manage roaming cat populations in 
Springfield and provide direction. 
 
Regular Meeting:  Authorize the City Manager to enter into a cooperative agreement with 
WAG to provide transportation and low cost spay/neuter services for cats. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The City is considering entering a cooperative agreement with Willamette Animal 
Guild (WAG) to provide transportation and low cost spay/neuter services for cats 
for Springfield residents.  Other options could include modifying existing 
ordinances to regulate cats roaming at large. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment 1:  MOU and Process Outline 
Attachment 2:  Memo in Support of WAG Partnership 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

 
City leaders and Police Department Animal Control staff are frequently asked to 
address the issue of free roaming cats in the community.  The resources necessary 
to hire staff to address roaming cats or to contract for shelter and adoption services 
have historically been cost prohibitive.   
 
One option would be to modify the existing City Ordinance which prohibits dogs at 
large to include all animals, including cats.  Such a modification would subject cat 
owners who allow their pets to roam freely to fines.  Because of the difficulty 
involved in enforcing such an ordinance, especially the challenge of identifying a 
cat’s owner, this is not a recommended option. 
 
Another option is to manage cat populations by encouraging responsible cat 
ownership practices to include spaying and neutering owned cats.  Doing so should 
reduce the population of unwanted free roaming cats.  This is the recommended 
option. 
 
City Staff have been working with Willamette Animal Guild, or WAG, to develop a 
cooperative program that will provide low cost spay and neuter services for cats to 
Springfield residents, as well as transportation to and from the WAG facility.  
Funding would come from fundraising efforts in the community.  
 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a 
cooperative agreement with WAG to provide low cost spay and neuter services to 
Springfield cat owners. 
 

 



Attachment 1, Page 1 of 3



Attachment 1, Page 2 of 3



Attachment 1, Page 3 of 3



 

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: 7/1/2013  

To: Gino Grimaldi COUNCIL 

From: Michael Harman, Police Services Bureau Manager BRIEFING 

Subject: Cat Population Management Options MEMORANDUM 

ISSUE: Should the City support a cooperative program with Willamette Animal Guild to 
provide transportation and low cost spay and neuter services for cats owned by Springfield 
residents? 

COUNCIL GOALS/ 
MANDATE: 
Preserve Hometown Feel, Livability, and Environmental Quality 
 

BACKGROUND: 
City leaders and Police Department Animal Control staff are frequently asked to address the 
issue of free roaming cats in the community.  The resources necessary to hire staff to address 
roaming cats or to contract for shelter and adoption services have historically been cost 
prohibitive.   
 
 
One option would be to amend the current ordinance to extend the prohibition of animals at 
large to include cats, with violations resulting in a fine not to exceed $720.00 pursuant to 
5.418(3).  Current Municipal Code prohibits any keeper of a dog or of any farm animal to allow 
those animals to run at large, except for bees and cats (Municipal Code 5.418).   The current staff 
assigned to animal control duties include a 1.0 Animal Control Officer, and the vast majority of 
that person’s time is devoted to addressing issues related to dogs.  The difficulty in identifying 
owners of roaming cats and of addressing feral or community cats would make enforcement a 
challenge, and would require much more resource than is currently available.  Also, there would 
be significant effort involved in changing the community expectation around indoor/outdoor 
cats.  This is not a recommended option. 
 
 
Staff recommends that the Council consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 
cooperative agreement with Willamette Animal Guild, or WAG, to provide transportation and 
low cost spay and neuter services for Springfield residents who own cats.  According to research 
cited by WAG staff, cat ownership rates are fairly stable across income distributions, but cat 
owners who’s incomes are above the poverty line are 90% likely to spay/neuther their pets, 
whereas owners who’s incomes are below the poverty line are 90% likely NOT to spay/neuter 
their pets.  For Springfield residents, the issue is likely compounded by the fact that both of the 
regional low cost clinics, WAG and Greenhill, are located in West Eugene.  
 
 



MEMORANDUM 6/27/2013 Page 2 

 
WAG has offered to identify community partners, businesses, who are willing to manage the 
paperwork and to receive cats from residents on scheduled days.  WAG will transport the cats to 
the WAG facility, up to 15 per scheduled day, and return them to the business by days end for 
the owners to reclaim.  Attachment 1 provides a brief outline of the anticipated process as well 
as the expected costs for the program.  Funding beyond the $10 paid by residents and money 
contributed by WAG will come from donations from the community.  It is not anticipated that 
General Fund dollars will be used to support this program.  Rather, staff and public officials will 
advertise and promote the program, and encourage willing partners to donate funds for the 
cooperative effort.  When sufficient funds are in place for the next set of surgeries, another date 
will be scheduled and assigned to a community partner for reservations. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Take no action to change existing Animal Control 
Ordinances.  Authorize the City Manager to enter into a cooperative agreement with WAG 
to provide transportation and low cost spay/neuter services for cats. 

 


	2013-07-01 Council Agenda
	WORK SESSION
	Item 1  Spring Clean-up Discussion
	ATT1 - Council Briefing Memorandum
	ATT2 - Team Springfield Promise Neighborhood Project Idea List

	Item 2  Cooperative Agreement for Low Cost Spay and Neuter Services for Cat Owners
	ATT1 - MOU and Process Outline
	ATT2 - Memo in Support of WAG Partnership

	SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT
	Item 1  Trig-Star Competition Recognition
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	Item 2  Minutes
	Item 2a - June 10, 2013 Work Session
	Item 2b - June 17, 2013 Work Session
	Item 2c - June 17, 2013 Regular Meeting

	Item 4  Ordinances
	Item 4a - Vacation of a Segment of Public Street Right-of-Way between Marcola Road and Pierce Parkway
	ATT1 - Location Map
	ATT2 - Vacation Application
	ATT3 - Ordinance with Exhibits
	Exhibit A: Map and Legal Description
	Exhibit B: Staff Report and Recommendations



	Item 5  Other Routine Matters
	Item 5a - Liquor License Application for WalMart #4178
	ATT1 - OLCC Liquor License Application

	Item 5b - Liquor License Application for LaVelle Vineyards
	ATT1 - OLCC Liquor License Application

	Item 5c - Contract Extension for Fire Apparatus Maintenance and Repair with Oregon Apparatus Repair Inc
	ATT1 - Second Amendment to Oregon Apparatus Repair Inc. Contract

	Item 5d - FireMed Administrative Services Contract with Life Flight Network LLC
	ATT1 - Life Flight Contract

	Item 5e -  P41020 Channel 6 Stormwater Master Plan Consultant Selection and Contract Award
	Item 5f - City Manager Compensation
	ATT1 - Council Briefing Memo of 5/16/13 to Finance/Judiciary Committee
	ATT2 - City Manager Compensation Survey 2013
	ATT3 - City Manager Compensation Survey 2013 with Proposed COLA


	BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER
	Item 02  Cooperative Agreement for Low Cost Spay and Neuter Services for Cat Owners
	ATT1 - MOU and Process Outline
	ATT2 - Memo in Support of WAG Partnership




